™ Montgomery Planning

ZTA 23-11 REGULATORY APPROVALS – CONDITIONAL USE SRA 23-02

PRELIMINARY PLAN - APPROVAL PROCEDURES

Description

The ZTA would streamline the Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearing's Conditional Use process by combining similar uses, switching certain uses from Conditional to Limited Use, and creating processes for inactive applications.

The SRA establishes a process for issuing and revising Preliminary Plans that were concurrently reviewed with a Conditional Use application and issued a "conditional approval" by the Planning Board.

ZTA 23-11 & SRA 23-02

Completed: 1-4-2023

МСРВ

Item No. 06

01-11-2023

2425 Reedie Drive

Floor 14

Wheaton, MD 20902

BB	Benjamin Berbert, Planner III, Countywide Planning and Policy <u>Benjamin.Berbert@montgomeryplanning.org</u> , 301-495-4644
ymg	Lisa Govoni, Acting Supervisor, Countywide Planning and Policy <u>Lisa.Govoni@montgomeryplanning.org</u> , 301-650-5624
DA	David Anspacher, Acting Chief, Countywide Planning and Policy <u>David.Anspacher@montgomeryplanning.org</u> , 301-495-2191

ZTA SPONSORS

Lead Sponsor: Councilmember Friedson

INTRODUCTION DATE

December 12, 2023

COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DATE

January 23, 2024

REVIEW BASIS

Chapters 50 & 59

Summary

- ZTA 23-11 and SRA 23-02 are a package of code amendments intended to streamline the conditional use review process.
- Preliminary plans and conditional use plans may be concurrently reviewed and recommended by the Planning Board.
- The ZTA recommends numerous changes including the combining of existing similar uses, the creation of new limited use standards for uses currently only allowed as conditional uses, simplifying the process around waivers and alternative compliance review, and providing new authority to the Hearing Examiner to dismiss applications and refund applications.
- The SRA creates a process to allow the Planning Director to approve minor modifications to preliminary plans after Board hearings but prior to certification that are conditioned on approval of a conditional use.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 – BACKGROUND	2
Rationale For Introduction	2
SECTION 2 - ZTA 23-11 ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION	3
Division 59-1.4. Defined Terms	4
Division 59-3.1. Use Table	4
Division 59-3.2. Agricultural Uses	5
Division 59-3.3. Residential Uses	6
Division 59-3.4. Civic And Institutional Uses	8
Division 59-3.5. Commercial Uses – As Introduced	9
Division 59-6.2. Parking, Queuing, and Loading	12
Division 59-6.3. Open Space and Recreation	14
Division 59-6.8. Alternative Compliance	14
Division 59-7.3. Regulatory Approvals	17
SECTION 3 - SRA 23-02 ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION	18
Section 50-4.2.E. Plan Certification	18
SECTION 4 - CLIMATE ASSESSMENT	19
SECTION 5 - CONCLUSION	20
SECTION 6 – ATTACHMENTS	20

SECTION 1 - BACKGROUND

Rationale For Introduction

Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA) 23-11, Regulatory Approvals – Conditional Use and Subdivision Regulation Amendment (SRA) 23-02, Preliminary Plan – Approval Procedures, were introduced on December 12, 2023, sponsored by Councilmember Friedson (Attachment A). The ZTA and SRA are scheduled for a District Council Public Hearing on January 23, 2024.

Together, the ZTA and SRA are part of a larger effort to streamline the submittal and review process for conditional uses. Staff from Planning, Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings (OZAH) and the Council collaborated to find opportunities in the county code, including both Zoning (chapter 59) and Subdivision (chapter 50) where the process could be simplified, or where uses were redundant or overly regulated. The introduced ZTA and SRA represent ideas that had the biggest regulatory impact with the least change to code.

Changes proposed by ZTA 23-11 include combining similar uses, creating opportunities for limited use review where only conditional use review exists currently, and adjusting the review standards and authority of the Hearing Examiner.

In Chapter 59 there are four categories for identifying how uses are allowed in any given zone, as illustrated in the Use Table from the Zoning Code. Section 59-3.1.1. is a key to using the use table and lists out the four categories. Two of these categories, *conditional use* and *limited use* are used frequently in the ZTA and this Staff Report. The four categories are listed below, with a brief description of what each use category means:

- Permitted (P) The use is permitted in the zone without any additional use standards that modify the operations or function of the use, beyond the development standards that apply to all uses based on the underlying zone (height, setbacks, density, placement).
- Limited (L) The use is allowed in the zone, but has additional use standards within Division 59-3 which serve to 'limit' the use. The standards vary greatly depending on the use and the zone, but often include additional setbacks, review process, necessary findings, or other measurable ways to ensure a use is otherwise appropriate for any location in that zone. As with Permitted uses, the standards of the underlying zone apply, unless specifically excluded or modified by the use standards.
- Conditional (C) The use may be allowed in the zone, if it can satisfy all of the conditional use standards within Division 59-3 and is approved by the Hearing Examiner. A conditional use is not a permitted or allowed use until approved by the Hearing Examiner. Conditional use standards often are similar to limited use standards, but rely on the Hearing Examiner's review to further limit any element of the use to ensure compatibility with the surrounding

- area. This may include limits on a use size, hours of operation, access and loading locations, deliveries, and a range of other factors that contribute to compatibility.
- Blank () If a cell in the use table is blank, that use is not permitted in any way.

SRA 23-02 proposes one small addition to code pertaining to modifications made to certified plans, which helps facilitate a more streamlined review of conditional use plans with preliminary plans. Montgomery Planning Staff will bring before the Planning Board concurrent reviews of preliminary plans and conditional use plans, if applicants request it. Current practice is to not review a preliminary plan until after the conditional use plan is approved, because the review of the preliminary plan presumes the use being reviewed is allowed by zoning for that site. With conditional uses, there is no presumption the use is allowed until the plan is approved by the Hearing Examiner. In this new process, Planning Staff and the Planning Board will review both applications jointly, but at the combined Planning Board Hearing, the Board would issue a conditional approval to the preliminary plan, contingent on the accompanying conditional use plan being approved by the Hearing Examiner. Planning Staff would not certify the preliminary plan until after the conditional use plan is approved. This would make the preliminary plan process appear longer, since it would delay final certification, but would be substantially shorter than the current process where the Planning Board reviews the preliminary plan after the conditional use is approved.

The SRA that was introduced would create a process where the Planning Director may permit certain minor changes to preliminary plans after a Planning Board Hearing, if the preliminary plan was concurrently reviewed with a conditional use, the final approval of the conditional use made modifications to the plans, and the modifications do not otherwise impact a condition or finding of the Planning Board.

SECTION 2 - ZTA 23-11 ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

ZTA 23-11 modifies multiple sections of the zoning code. The following sections of this report are broken down by Division, and will walk through each amended section starting with the text as it was introduced, then discussing Planning Staff's analysis and recommendations if applicable. With each section, Planning Staff references the line numbers in the ZTA where these specific changes occur, so the reader can follow along with both documents.

Division 59-1.4. Defined Terms

DIVISION 59-1.4. DEFINED TERMS - AS INTRODUCED

In the first section of the ZTA, 59-1.4 Defined Terms, lines 4 – 15, a few changes to defined terms are proposed, reflecting changes that are proposed in other parts of the ZTA. Non-substantive changes include:

- Updating the code sections for both types of Day Care Center to reflect changes to the numbering in Section 3.4.4.
- The deletion of Group Day Care (9-12) Persons as this section is merged with another section (see lines 563-585).
- The deletion of two sub-uses within the Home Health Practitioner use, including: Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and (Major Impact) (lines 222-229 and 340-368).

DIVISION 59-1.4. DEFINED TERMS - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The modifications to the Defined Terms Division are straightforward. They delete the uses that are proposed for removal through consolidation, and also adjust section references to certain terms that were also adjusted by adding or removing use standards throughout the ZTA. The shown modifications make sense given the other changes proposed by the ZTA and are supported by Planning Staff

Recommendation – Support the modifications in the Defined Terms section as introduced.

Division 59-3.1. Use Table

DIVISION 59-3.1. USE TABLE - AS INTRODUCED

In Section 3.1.5. Transferable Development Rights, lines 24-46 of the ZTA, the list of uses prohibited on lots or parcels located in the AR zone and encumbered by a Transfer of Development Rights easement is updated to reflect changes made to uses by other parts of the ZTA. Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and (Major Impact) are merged into one use, and Group Day Care (9-12) is removed. Reflecting these changes in the alphanumeric list causes the remainder of the list to be updated accordingly.

Section 3.1.6. Use Table, shown as line 51 stretching across pages 5 and 6 of the ZTA have multiple updates to both the uses listed, and the permittable level of uses (permitted, limited, or conditional). The analysis for these changes are discussed later in the Staff Report, but are reflected in the use table to include:

- Adding Limited as an option for Equestrian Facilities in the RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200 zones.
- Deleting the uses Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact), which was a limited use in almost every zone and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact), which was a conditional use in almost every zone, and replacing them with a single use of Home Health Practitioner listed as Limited/Conditional.
- Adding Limited as an option for Home Occupation (Major Impact) in the Commercial/Residential and Employment Zones.
- Updating the use Family Day Care (Up to 8) to reflect the new use Group Day Care (Up to 12), and deleting the use Group Day Care (9-12).
- Updating the use Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 120,000) to (85,001 and Over), and deleting the use Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 and Over).
- Adding Limited as an option for Rural County Market in the AG, and Rural Residential Zones, along with the RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200 zones.
- Adding Limited as an option for Automobile Storage Lot in the Industrial Zones.

DIVISION 59-3.1 USE TABLE - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The Use Table updates are technical in nature, updating use names and section numbers that are edited in other parts of this ZTA. Staff identified one additional edit missing from the use table (line 51) based on the changes proposed by the ZTA. Under Civic and Intuitional, Day Care Facility, the use table updates to show the new use for Family Day Care (Up to 12 Persons), remove Group Day Care (9-12 Persons), and updates Day Care Center (13-30 Persons) to section D from E, but the use Group Day Care (Over 30 Persons) also needs to be updated in the use table, reflecting that it has moved from section 59-3.4.4.F. to 59-3.4.4.E.

Recommendation – update the use table to reflect the section change for Group Day Care (Over 30 Persons) from Section 3.4.4 F to Section 3.4.4 E.

Division 59-3.2. Agricultural Uses

DIVISION 59-3.2. AGRICULTURAL USES - AS INTRODUCED

The change proposed on lines 56-154 is to the use Equestrian Facility, Section 3.2.4. Currently, Equestrian Facility is a limited use in the AG and Rural Residential zones, but are only allowed as a conditional use in the Residential zones. Lines 71-81 insert a new section of standards that would provide a limited use option in the larger lot Residential zones (RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200). The new limited use standards would permit up to 5 horses on a property if the following standards could be met:

- i. The horses are kept for non-commercial purposes. Commercial purposes include boarding horses not owned by the resident for a fee, instruction in equestrian skills for a fee, and events such as competitions, exhibitions, or other displays of equestrian skills.
- ii. The maximum number of horses is determined by the minimum lot sizes in Section 3.2.4.B.1.a.
- iii. State requirements for nutrient management concerning animal waste must be met.

The remainder of the Equestrian Facility code sections remain unchanged, except the subsection numbering is shifted to accommodate the added limited use code mentioned above.

DIVISION 59-3.2 AGRICULTURAL USES – ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The proposed changes to Equestrian Facility would allow the use as a limited use with new use standards for the RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200 zones. Planning Staff agree in creating limited use standards for these zones, and find the proposed standards, when combined with the standards that apply to all Equestrian Facilities, to be appropriate. This will eliminate the need for Planning Staff and the Hearing Examiner to review these relatively minor requests from property owners to house up to five horses on large lot residential properties that have adequate acerage.

Recommendation - Support the limited use standards for Equestrian Facilities as introduced.

Division 59-3.3. Residential Uses

There are two groups of uses that are amended by this ZTA in the Residential Uses Division: Home Health Practitioners, and Home Occupation.

HOME HEALTH PRACTITIONERS

SECTION 59-3.3.3.G. HOME HEALTH PRACTITIONER - AS INTRODUCED

The first section amended under 59-3.3 Residential Uses is Section 3.3.3.G. Accessory Residential Uses – Home Health Practitioner. The amendment covers a large section of the ZTA, from lines 161-368. The code currently has a general definition for Home Health Practitioner, and then separate standards for a Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact), which is allowed as a limited use in most zones, and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact), which is allowed as a conditional use in most zones. This ZTA merges the two uses into one single use for Home Health Practitioner, and streamlines the code to allow it as both a limited use or a conditional use in almost every zone. With the merging of the different Home Health Practitioners, the definition (lines 175-175) is expanded to say:

b. Home Health Practitioner is limited to 2 health practitioners, one of whom must be a resident, and up to 3 non-resident support persons in any 24-hour period.

Most of the limited use standards from the previous Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) use are maintained as standards that apply to all Home Health Practitioners, with a few new standards added, based on conditions that are commonly placed on those that were conditionally approved, including:

- Limiting hours of operation to between 7:00am and 7:00pm (lines 234-235)
- Prohibiting the use on a site approved with a conditional use, or with a Home Occupation (Major Impact) (lines 241-245)
- Adding that where Home Health Practitioner is allowed as a conditional use, all limited use standards apply except for hours of operations, number of clients, patients, or visitors, and conditions around the on-site sale of goods, which may be modified by the Hearing Examiner (lines 250-255).

The Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact) and its list of standards are deleted in lines 340-368, since most of these standards were captured either in the expanded definition, or the added standards listed above.

SECTION 59-3.3.3.G. HOME HEALTH PRACTITIONER - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Planning Staff support the idea of merging the Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact) into one use. Most of the use standards from both uses were combined to form one long list of limited use standards. The new standards proposed are based on conditions commonly applied by the Hearing Examiner to the Home Health Practitioners (Major Impact) during conditional use review. This seems reasonable because the difference in impacts between low impact uses and major impact uses were nominal. The primary difference was allowing the Hearing Examiner to waive some of the standards through a conditional use review. For clarity and consistency with other code sections, Planning Staff recommends adding the phrase "Where Home Health Practitioner is allowed as a limited use, the following standards apply" to line 177 of the ZTA, prior to starting the alphanumeric list of standards. This statement is common in other uses of the code where a use may be both limited or conditional. Similar text already introduces the standards that apply to only conditional use review on line 250 of the ZTA.

Recommendation – Support merging Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact) into one use, but add the phrase "Where Home Health Practitioner is allowed as a limited use, the following standards apply" on line 177 of the ZTA.

HOME OCCUPATION

SECTION 59-3.3.3.H. HOME OCCUPATION - AS INTRODUCED

The other Residential use modified by the ZTA is the Accessory Residential Use - Home Occupation under section 59-3.3.3.H. These amendments are covered in lines 370-521 of the ZTA. Similar to the Home Health Practitioner use discussed above, Home Occupation has a general definition and standards that apply to all types of Home Occupation, and then has sub-categories of Home Occupation (No Impact), Home Occupation (Low Impact) and Home Occupation (Major Impact), each with separate sub-definitions and use standards. For Home Occupation, the ZTA does not seek to merge the three categories together, rather it adds limited use standards for Home Occupation (Major Impact). The new limited use standards are shown on lines 439-472 of the ZTA. These standards include limiting total visitors, requiring an indoor waiting area, limiting in-person sales, limiting onsite storage and display of merchandise, and prohibiting the use in conjunction with other at home employment uses.

SECTION 59-3.3.3.H. HOME OCCUPATION - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The amendments to the Home Occupation section of code provide an opportunity to allow Home Occupation (Major Impact) as a limited use, with set standards, and retains the ability to apply for conditional use if an applicant wishes to deviate from certain standards. The standards proposed as a limited use seems reasonable and consistent with the intensity allowed with other at-home types of businesses, limiting the number of visitors, deliveries, sales, and displays that may occur. The limited use standards also prohibit additional at-home businesses if also doing a Home Occupation (Major Impact).

Recommendation – Support the new limited use standards for Home Occupation (Major Impact) as introduced.

Division 59-3.4. Civic And Institutional Uses

DIVISION 59-3.4 CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES - AS INTRODUCED

Within Division 59-3.4 Civic and Institutional Uses, the ZTA proposes modifications to Section 59-3.3.4. Day Care Facility, on lines 545 – 617 of the ZTA. The Current code has four size ranges of Day Care Facilities;

- Family Day Care (Up to 8 persons)
- Group Day Care (9-12 persons)
- Day Care Center (13-30 persons)

Day Care Center (over 30 persons)

The Family Day Care (Up to 8 persons) is currently permitted in every zone, but Group Day Care (9-12 persons) is substantially more restricted, only allowed as a limited use for the Rural Residential and larger lot Residential zones, and is a conditional use in the remaining Residential, townhouse and multi-unit zones. This ZTA proposes merging Family Day Care (up to 8 persons) with Group Day Care (9-12 persons), creating a new use for Family Day Care (up to 12 persons), and permitting the use in every zone except for Industrial-Heavy. The ZTA is slightly expanding upon the existing definition of Family Day Care to clarify that the registrant for the use may be the care provider and a resident, otherwise a conditional use application would need to be filed. Lines 563-585 are the deletion of the existing Group Day Care (9-12) use. There are no policy modifications for the remaining two larger Day Care use groups, just the necessary section re-numbering from having deleted the (9-12) use in the section.

DIVISION 59-3.4 CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The proposed revisions to combine Family Day Care (up to 8 Persons) and Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) into one new use, Family Day Care (Up to 12 Persons) is supported by Planning Staff. The combined use will be a permitted use in all zones, like Family Day Care (up to 8 Persons) currently. Adding up to four additional children in the care facility is a relatively small impact on adjacent land uses, but has a huge impact in reducing regulatory burdens for small childcare providers. The additional regulatory hurdles that were required for Group Day Care (Up to 12 Persons) were substantial, as the use was not permitted outright in any zone and either had to follow limited, or conditional use standards. Many childcare providers each year file plans to enlarge an existing small childcare facility from 8 to 12 capacity. Most of these requests occur with no physical changes in building exterior or on-site operations. Planning Staff are very supportive of this change making it easier to modestly expand permitted care facilities without additional hardship for the applicants.

Recommendation – Support combining the existing Day Care categories of Family Day Care (up to 8 Persons) and Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) into one, permitted use of Family Day Care (up to 12 Persons).

Division 59-3.5. Commercial Uses – As Introduced

The ZTA proposes edits to three uses under Division 59-3.5; Retail/Service establishment under Section 3.5.11.B, Rural Country Market under Section 3.5.11.D, and Automobile Storage Lot under Section 3.5.13.A.

RETAIL/SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT

SECTION 59-3.5.11.B. RETAIL/SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT- AS INTRODUCED

The use Retail/Service Establishment, lines 624-775 of the introduced ZTA, is being amended in two ways. First, there are modifications to the retail size ranges occurring in the use table (see page 6 of the ZTA). Currently, the code divides Retail/Service establishment into six categories based on square footage.

- Retail/Service Establishment (Up to 5,000 SF)
- Retail/Service Establishment (5,001 15,000 SF)
- Retail/Service Establishment (15,001 50,000 SF)
- Retail/Service Establishment (50,001 85,000 SF)
- Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 120,000 SF)
- Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 SF and Over)

As the square footage increases, the uses become more restrictive both in the number of zones, and in the rigorousness of the review process. Only one use, (120,001 and Over) requires a conditional use in any circumstances. The ZTA proposes merging the upper two size categories into one, effectively making the uppermost category Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 and Over), rather than the current (120,001 and Over).

The second change occurs in Section 59-3.5.11.B to add new limited use standards that would apply to establishments 120,001 square feet and larger in size (lines 746-767)., and the deletion of the conditional use requirements (lines 768-775). These proposed limited use standards were pulled from a few sources, including standards that apply to establishments over 50,000 square feet in size within ½ mile of Metrorail (lines 662-711), or that came from the intent of the deleted conditional use standards for retail 120,001 square feet and over.

SECTION 59-3.5.11.B. RETAIL/SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT – ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Planning Staff have no objection to the proposal to combine the two largest sub-categories of retail establishments into one, because there is little effective difference in the impacts that a single retailer user of these sizes would have on form or function. As drafted, this combination also eliminates the conditional use requirement for the largest retailer users from the GR and NR zones. The added standards that would apply to establishments over 120,000 square feet serve the same compatibility function that a conditional use would have, and are standards borrowed from other retail uses either within ½ mile of a Metrorail station, or from the form requirements for mixed use projects. Planning Staff recommend a slight modification to the wording of the new standard 59-3.11.B.2.a.ix(b), marked up as follows:

(b) Street level retail facades that front public or private streets or parking areas must provide transparent glazing for at least 60 percent of the horizontal length of the building façade as measured from a height of no more than 3 feet above the walkway grade to no more than 8 feet above the walkway grade [[between the height, at a minimum, of 3 feet and 8 feet above the walkway grade]]. Transparent glazing includes transparent windows, unobstructed display windows, or transparent store doors.

The proposed language is not fundamentally different in intent, but is more clearly written.

Recommendation - Support combining the Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 – 120,000) and Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 and Over) into a new single use Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 and Over), with the proposed standards, including the modification to (b) described above.

RURAL COUNTRY MARKET

SECTION 59-3.5.11.D. RURAL COUNTRY MARKET – AS INTRODUCED

Rural Country Markets, described under Section 59-3.5.11.D., lines 777-816 in the ZTA, currently is only allowed as a conditional use in the AR, R, RC, RNC, RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1 and R-200 zones. This ZTA proposes to allow it as a limited use in the same zones, with limited use standards that incorporate most of the existing conditional use standards. These include a minimum tract area of 2 acres, a maximum building height of 20 feet unless incorporated into an existing building, and a minimum setback of 50 feet from side or rear lot lines. The ZTA then creates a new sub-section that allows the Hearing Examiner to approve the use as a conditional use with reduced setbacks, or the use of an existing structure that does not meet height and setbacks, if the use is still found to be suitable and compatible with the surrounding area.

SECTION 59-3.5.11.D. RURAL COUNTRY MARKET - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The proposed changes to Rural Country Markets in Section 59-3.5.11.D to add a limited use option in all the zones that currently allow it as a conditional use is a reasonable way to simplify approving this use. These markets are small, often roadside markets in rural areas selling local farm produced food, and commercially produced products are prohibited. The ZTA would convert most of the conditional use standards to limited use standards. For applications that cannot meet the limited use standards, a conditional use could still be filed. Making it easier to open these small Rural Country Markets is a reasonable way to help farms remain viable.

Recommendation – Support the changes making Rural County Market a limited use in certain zones.

AUTOMOBILE STORAGE LOT

SECTION 59-3.5.13.A. AUTOMOBILE STORAGE LOT – AS INTRODUCED

Automobile Storage Lot is a subsection of Vehicle Service under Section 59-3.5.13 (lines 818-843). This use is only allowed in the code as a conditional use, and is only allowed in the GR zone. This ZTA would allow the use to also occur as a limited use in any of the three industrial zones. The ZTA adds new limited use standards including requiring vehicles only be parked on a hard surface, that access to a residential street is prohibited, that the tract is less than 10 acres, and on-site illumination needs to be kept to 0.5 footcandles or less. These standards are largely borrowed from the Vehicle Sales and Rental (Outdoor) use, which also may have large quantities of vehicles stored outdoors.

SECTION 59-3.5.13.A. AUTOMOBILE STORAGE LOT – ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATON

The ZTA proposed to allow Automobile Storage Lots in the industrial zones as a limited use, following many of the use standards for Automobile Sales and Service (Outdoor). Currently, the use is only allowed in the GR zone, as a conditional use. This expansion of zones and the proposed standards make sense. The use is a narrowly defined use, as a vehicle storage area for towed vehicles, and is not intended to store junked cars. This sort of use is appropriate in industrial zones where compatibility concerns are limited. Utilizing the use standards from auto sales lots is also reasonable considering the shared aesthetic of vehicles parked outdoors.

Recommendation – Support the expansion of the use into the industrial zones, with the proposed limited use standards.

Division 59-6.2. Parking, Queuing, and Loading

DIVISION 59-6.2 PARKING, QUEUING, AND LOADING - AS INTRODUCED

There are two broad areas of change proposed by this ZTA to Division 59-6.2 under the Parking section. The first change updates the required parking table (line 852) to reflect the various changes in uses throughout this ZTA (deletion, merger, renaming), as discussed earlier in this report. The other change proposed is under Section 6.2.1. Parking Waiver (lines 854-859). The ZTA keeps the standards for a parking waiver, but deletes the requirement that the waiver request require a specific public notice under Section 59-7.5.2.D.

DIVISION 59-6.2 PARKING, QUEUING, AND LOADING - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Planning Staff support the updates to the parking table, as they are straightforward, removing the (Low Impact) and (Major Impact) for Home Health Practitioner, and removing Group Day Care, consistent with these uses being removed from the code as discussed in other sections of this report.

The parking waiver modification is less straightforward. Section 59-7.5.2.D. Application Notice is the type of notice a parking waiver requires. Application Notice is a specific type of notice, most typically associated with sketch, site, signature business HQ, biohealth priority campus, and mixed income Plans. Conditional uses do not require Application Notice under Section 59-7.5.2.D, instead they require a notice called Hearing Notice under 59-7.5.2.E. When there is a parking waiver request with a conditional use, it creates extra process and expense for applicants to fulfill the Application Notice. Occasionally, the need for a parking waiver is not known when plans are submitted for review, as the issue arises during the review process itself.

Both the Application Notice and the Hearing Notice requires mailed notice to all abutting and confronting property owners, and civic, HOA, and renter associations registered with the Planning Board within ½ mile of a property. The two notices also share similarities in identifying project names, filing numbers, property location, and basics about the application. The primary difference is the Application Notice is done at the beginning of a review to alert neighbors to a pending review, and the Hearing Notice is done later in process to notify neighbors about a pending public hearing. While Planning Staff acknowledge needing to send an Application Notice just because of a parking waiver is potentially burdensome, Planning Staff believe requested waivers including parking waivers should have some type of notice. Waiver requests should be added as a requirement of the Hearing Notice when applicable as an alternative. The Hearing Notice goes out 30 days prior to a hearing for conditional use applications which provides sufficient time for neighbors and interested parties to comment on the request and otherwise become engaged in the process. For site plans that request parking waivers, the existing process of including it in the Application Notice should remain since site plans already require Application Notice. Planning Staff recommends Section 59-6.2.10 be modified as follows:

Section 6.2.10. Parking Waiver

The deciding body may waive any requirement of Division 6.2, except the required parking in a Parking Lot District under Section 6.2.3.H.1, if the alternative design satisfies Section 6.2.1. <u>Any request for a waiver of the vehicle parking space requirement under Section 6.2.4.B requires application notice under Section 7.5.2.D or Hearing Notice under Section 7.5.2.E.</u>

Recommendation – Support the amendments to the parking table, and amend the parking waiver section of the ZTA as to allow Hearing Notice under Section 7.5.2.E. as an alternative notice requirement.

Division 59-6.3. Open Space and Recreation

DIVISION 59-6.3 OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION - AS INTRODUCED

The changes proposed under Division 59-6.3 Open Space (lines 862-906) amend the list of uses prohibited in rural open space, under the RC and the RNC zones in Within Section 59-6.3.4 Rural Open Space. Specifically, Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) is removed, and then update the numbering for the remainder of the uses in the list.

DIVISION 59-6.3. OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The changes to the Open Space and Recreation Division are technical updates to the list of uses prohibited in Rural Open Space. The uses proposed for removal from the code are being removed from this list, resulting in the renumbering of the remaining items in the sequence.

Recommendation – Support the edits to the list of uses prohibited in Rural Open Space.

Division 59-6.8. Alternative Compliance

DIVISION 59-6.8. ALTERNATIVE COMPLIANCE - AS INTRODUCED

Division 59-6.8. Alternative Compliance is located at the end of Article 59-6 General Development Standards, and acts as a catchall allowing the approving authority to deviate from the standards in most of Article 59-6, if findings can be made that the code intent is still met, modifications are the minimum necessary for relief, that impacts are mitigated, and that there is a public interest. This ZTA proposes adding an exclusion to Alternative Compliance, lines 924-926, stating that landscape plans that provide more than the minimum screening requirement may be approved by the deciding body without regard to this section.

DIVISION 59-6.8. ALTERNATIVE COMPLIANCE - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Planning Staff have a couple of concerns with this amendment to the Alternative Compliance as written. First, the ZTA text states 'plans that provide more than the minimum requirement in Division 6.5 may be approved...'. Planning Staff sees this language as a statement of fact. Any elements provided on a plan that clearly 'exceeds' minimum standards by definition is satisfying the minimum, and would be approvable without Alternative Compliance. The issue as understood by Planning Staff is the cumbersome detailed nature of applying Alternative Compliance, and that the need to deviate from the requirements of Article 6 that can arise as part of the negotiations at conditional use

hearings, especially around screening. The desired outcome may be screening that from a practical standpoint is more effective, but deviates from rather than exceeds base standards. This often causes cases to be put on hold, with the Alternative Compliance review sent back to Planning Staff to analyze and provide supplemental analysis on, resulting in weeks of delay.

One solution to this is to clarify the ability of the Hearing Examiner to deviate from the requirements of Article 59-6 for purposes of compatibility. The findings for conditional use are found under Section 59-7.3.1.E., Necessary Findings for conditional uses. Existing Section 59-7.3.1.E.1.b. states that to approve a conditional use application, the Hearing Examiner must find that the proposed development satisfies the requirements of the zone, use standards under Article 59-3, and to the extent the Hearing Examiner finds necessary to ensure compatibility, meets applicable general requirements under Article 59-6. This section starts to suggest conditional uses may not need to strictly follow Article 59-6 but does not state this clearly. Planning Staff recommends modifying this line of code to read as follows:

b. satisfies the requirements of the zone, use standards under Article 59-3, and to the extent the Hearing Examiner finds necessary to ensure compatibility, meets [applicable] the intent of the general requirements under Article 59-6.

Replacing the word 'applicable' with the phrase 'the intent of the' allows the Hearing Examiner to refer back to the intent statements of each Division in Article 59-6, and then modify the General Development Requirements as necessary to ensure compatibility. Given the nature of the Hearing Examiners review focused on compatibility, Planning Staff find this flexibility reasonable. Planning Staff still find it appropriate for the Planning Board at the time of a site plan to apply Alternative Compliance, including the screening requirements of Division 59-6.

In the rare occasion a conditional use comes back before the Board as a site plan, it should be clear that any alternative requirements imposed by the Hearing Examiner can be in lieu of the requirements in Article 59-6 and Alternative Compliance would not be necessary. Planning Staff have to possible remedies for this rare but possible scenario. First would be to modify the ZTA to include the following changes to 59-6.8.1. which clarify that Alternative Compliance only applies to the Planning Board, and provides the Board the ability to approve plans that do not follow all of Article 59-6 if the Hearing Examiner has already approved alternative standards.

Section 6.8.1. Alternative Method of Compliance

The [[applicable deciding body]] Planning Board may approve an alternative method of compliance with any requirement of Division 6.1 and Division 6.3 through Division 6.6 if it determines that there is a unique site, a use characteristic, or a development constraint, such as grade, visibility, an existing building or structure, an easement, or a utility line. The [[applicable deciding body]] Planning Board must also determine that the unique site, use characteristic, or development constraint precludes safe or efficient development under the requirements of the applicable Division, and the alternative design will:

* * *

B. [[Landscape plans that provide landscaping and site elements that will meet or exceed the requirements of Division 6.4 or Division 6.5 may be approved by the Hearing Examiner without regard to this section, if the alternative landscaping design is deemed adequate to ensure compatibility.]] If an application is subject to a previous conditional use approval that approved alternative screening standards than those found under Section 6.2.9. Parking Lot Landscaping and Outdoor Lighting, or Division 6.5. Screening, those alternative standards apply and Section 6.8.1. is not applicable.

This language clarifies that Alternative Compliance only applies to the Planning Board during its review of applicable plans, and clarifies that standards set by the Hearing Examiner on a conditional use are valid and do not require the Board to review Alternative Compliance. The two specific sections referenced, Section 6.2.9, and Division 6.5 are both sections that involve screening, which is what the Hearing Examiner is most concerned with being able to deviate from. Planning Staff note that upon asking the Department of Permitting Services if they ever apply Alternative Compliance as part of a permit review they were unable to think of a case where they did.

Planning Staff's alternative suggestion would continue to replace 'applicable deciding body' with 'Planning Board' as discussed above, but would completely remove Section 59-6.8.1.B above and instead modify the site plan findings under 59-7.3.4.E. Alternative Compliance does not apply to Division 6.2. Parking, Queueing, and Loading, since there is a Parking Waiver under Section 59-6.2.10. Therefore, It may be ill-placed to reference compliance with alternative standards from Division 6.2 under Alternative Compliance. Modifying the existing site plan findings to require compliance with any existing conditional uses on the site is another alternative to allow the Board to find conformance with Chapter 59 using the standards set forth by the Hearing Examiner. Planning Staff would recommend modifying the condition under 59-7.3.4.E.2.d. as follows:

d. satisfies applicable use standards, development standards, and general requirements under this Chapter <u>including any general development requirements modified by an approved conditional use</u>;

Recommendation – Transmit the alternative language for conditional use findings in Section 59-7.3.1.E.1.b. that provide the Hearing Examiner flexibility in approving Article 6, the amendment to Alternative Compliance Section 6.8.1. that clarify the section applies to the Planning Board, and the options to either amend Section 6.8.1.B. to exempt the Board from having to find Alternative Compliance for modifications to parking lot and site screening, or to amend the site plan findings under Section 7.3.4.E.2.d. to require site plans follow any general development requirements modified by a conditional use.

Division 59-7.3. Regulatory Approvals

DIVISION 59-7.3. REGULATORY APPROVALS - AS INTRODUCED

Division 59-7.3 Regulatory Approvals is a broad Division that covers all types of regulatory plan approval. The standards for review of conditional uses are within this Division, under Section 59-7.3.1. The ZTA proposes modifying an existing section, 59-7.3.1.D.4 Withdraw of an Application, to include <u>Dismissal</u> or Withdraw of an Application. The ZTA adds new provisions to allow the Hearing Examiner to dismiss an application with 60 days' notice after one year of application inactivity. Applicants would also have the option to request a stay of the dismissal. These changes are shown on lines 940-985 of the ZTA.

DIVISION 59-7.3. REGULATORY APPROVALS - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The ZTA creates a process for the Hearing Examiner to withdraw a stalled application, by amending Section 59-7.3.1.D.4, to add 'Dismissal' to the existing Withdraw of an Application section. This is a reasonable addition, allowing the Hearing Examiner to file a motion to dismiss an application inactive for over a year, after providing 60 days' notice.

As discussed in more detail under the Alternative Compliance section on page 15 of this Staff Report, Planning Staff is also recommending the modification to Section 59-7.3.1.E.1.b. as follows:

b. satisfies the requirements of the zone, use standards under Article 59-3, and to the extent the Hearing Examiner finds necessary to ensure compatibility, meets [applicable] the intent of the general requirements under Article 59-6.

Recommendation – Support amending Section 59-7.3.1.D.4. to add Dismissal standards to the existing section, and amending Section 59-7.3.1.E.1.b. clarifying the conditional use meet the intent of Article 59-6 to meet compatibility.

DIVISION 59-7.6. SPECIAL PROVISIONS - AS INTRODUCED

The last section of code that would be amended by this ZTA is under the Special Provisions Division. This Division is a set of regulations that set forth the duties and responsibilities of the various agencies with the authority to act on the zoning code. This ZTA is proposing a new section under Section 59-7.6.5. Fees, adding C. Waiving or Refunding of Conditional Use Fees (lines 1006 – 1020). This section provides the Hearing Examiner the option to waive or refund the filing fees for a conditional use application if either the application has yet to be noticed for a public hearing, if a major change (Master Plan, ZTA, map amendment) within the past 90 days has materially affected the property, the

property has started condemnation proceedings, or if a government body takes an action rendering the issues of the application moot or resolved.

DIVISION 59-7.6. SPECIAL PROVISIONS - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The amendment allowing the full or partial refunding of filing fees under certain circumstances is a reasonable practice and supported by Planning Staff.

Recommendation – Support the addition of Section 59-7.6.C. Waiving or Refunding of Conditional Use Fees.

SECTION 3 - SRA 23-02 ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

Section 50-4.2.E. Plan Certification

SECTION 50-4.2.E. PLAN CERTIFICATION - AS INTRODUCED

As discussed in the background section of this report, one element in streamlining conditional use reviews is a policy change to allow concurrent review of preliminary plans with conditional use plans. During the hearing and deliberation of the conditional use plan with OZAH, changes may occur to applications after the Planning Board has reviewed them at a public hearing. To streamline the process, a new policy is added to Chapter 50 allowing the Director to approve minor changes to certified preliminary plans so that the applicant can avoid another Planning Board hearing.

The Section that would be added is under Section 50-4.2.E Plan Certification (page 48, lines 14-25 of the SRA). Any minor change that does not alter a Planning Board condition, or substantially impact a finding, may be approved by the Planning Director. A 15-day waiting period from the date of OZAH approving the conditional use plan would allow a party of record to object and request the Board reconsider the plan. The Director would also have the option to request a new Board hearing to discuss the changes if they deemed it necessary.

SECTION 50-4.2.E. PLAN CERTIFICATION - ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION

The SRA creates a process that would allow the Planning Director to allow minor modifications to preliminary plans that are recommended for approval by the Board contingent on the passage of a specific conditional use application. Normally changing a plan that has already been before the Board is handled through an amendment, however, amendments presume the previous plan is approved and certified. Preliminary plans for a conditional use cannot be certified and approved until after

approval of the pending conditional use application. If the conditional use plan changes after the Planning Board hearing but prior to approval, and these changes need to be reflected on the preliminary plan drawings, these changes would need to be made to the preliminary plan prior to certification. If the changes were substantial, such as increasing density, impacting findings, or modifying conditions of approval, Planning Staff would bring the changes back before the Planning Board as a continuation of the hearing. This SRA establishes a process for minor changes that can be acted upon by the Planning Director rather than the full Board. Planning Staff supports this new process that would avoid needing additional hearings for small modifications. Having to take minor modifications back to the Board would delay the approval of the preliminary plan, counter to the intent of streamlining the process. The provisions in the SRA provide for a 15-day objection period by parties of record, and for the Director to voluntarily send the plans back to the Board for any reason. These standards are consistent with language in other sections in code that pertain to Director and Administrative level approvals.

Recommendation – Support the SRA creating a process for Planning Director modifications to certain preliminary plans prior to certification, as introduced.

SECTION 4 - CLIMATE ASSESSMENT

Bill 3-22, passed by the County Council on July 12, 2022, requires the Planning Board to prepare a climate assessment for each zoning text amendment, master plan, and master plan amendment, effective March 1, 2023. Each climate assessment must include the potential positive or negative effects a ZTA may have on climate change (including greenhouse gas emissions) and upon community resilience and adaptive capacity. The climate impact assessment for ZTA 23-11 is attached in Attachment B.

The anticipated to all factors assessed by the climate assessment are negligible because most of the changes in the ZTA are procedural changes in how designated review agencies perform their review and do not actively modify the physical behavior of land uses. Any impacts to greenhouse gas emissions and sequestration will be minor, and it is indeterminant whether there would be a net positive or negative impact. Any change in emissions is tied to the extent applicants are encouraged to apply for uses as a result of a more streamlined process. Since most of the uses being modified are at-home uses, it is difficult if not impossible to determine if there will be a resulting increase or decrease in vehicle trips or other emissions factors. On a local level there may be more impact from increased patrons or delivery vehicles, but reductions from working at home rather than an off-site location. Impacts to community resilience and adaptive capacity will also be minor and positive. The streamlined process will benefit applicants and may increase the availability or distribution of economic resources, benefit community connectivity, and change the distribution of resources and support.

SECTION 5 - CONCLUSION

Planning Staff recommends the Planning Board support ZTA 23-11 with the revisions recommended by Planning Staff, and SRA 23-02 as introduced. These proposed code changes will help streamline conditional use reviews with practical recommendations to combine similar uses, provide opportunities for limited use review, and to facilitate concurrent preliminary plan and conditional use reviews.

SECTION 6 - ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Zoning Text Amendment 23-11 and Subdivision Text Amendment 23-02 Intro Packet
Attachment B: Climate Assessment 23-11

Attachment A



Committee: PHP

Committee Review: At a future date **Staff:** Livhu Ndou, Legislative Attorney

Purpose: To introduce agenda item – no vote expected **Keywords:** #ConditionalUse #LimitedUse

#HearingExaminer #OZAH #PreliminaryPlan

AGENDA ITEMS #2A&2B December 12, 2023 Introduction

SUBJECT

Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA) 23-11, Regulatory Approvals – Conditional Use Subdivision Regulation Amendment (SRA) 23-02, Preliminary Plan – Approval Procedures

Lead Sponsor: Council President Friedson

EXPECTED ATTENDEES

None

COUNCIL DECISION POINTS & COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

To introduce ZTA and SRA

DESCRIPTION/ISSUE

ZTA 23-11, Regulatory Approvals – Conditional Use, will streamline the Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearing's (OZAH) processes. SRA 23-02, Preliminary Plan – Approval Procedures, will allow concurrent review of a preliminary plan and conditional use application.

SUMMARY OF KEY DISCUSSION POINTS

- SRA 23-02 will allow concurrent review of a preliminary plan and conditional use application. The preliminary plan approval will be a "conditional approval" contingent on the approval of the conditional use.
- ZTA 23-11 will streamline OZAH's processes by:
 - allowing limited use approval in certain zones for the following uses: Equestrian Facility, Home Health Practitioner, Home Occupation (Major Impact), Retail/Service Establishment, Rural Country Market, and Automobile Storage Lot;
 - increasing Family Day Care from 8 to 12 persons and eliminating Group Day Care (9-12 Persons);
 - consolidating Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact);
 - consolidating Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 SF and Over) and Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 SF and Over);
 - o not requiring additional notice for waiver of a parking requirement;
 - o not requiring landscaping plans that provide more than the minimum requirements to go through the alternative method of compliance;
 - o allowing the Hearing Examiner to dismiss inactive applications; and
 - o allowing the Hearing Examiner to waive or refund conditional use fees.

• A public hearing is tentatively scheduled for January 23, 2024.

This report contains:

ZTA 23-11 © 1 SRA 23-02 © 48

Alternative format requests for people with disabilities. If you need assistance accessing this report you may <u>submit alternative format requests</u> to the ADA Compliance Manager. The ADA Compliance Manager can also be reached at 240-777-6197 (TTY 240-777-6196) or at <u>adacompliance@montgomerycountymd.gov</u>

Ordinance No.:
Zoning Text Amendment No.: 23-11
Concerning: Regulatory Approvals –
Conditional Use
Revised: 12/4/2023 Draft No.: 1
Introduced: December 12, 2023
Public Hearing:
Adopted:
Effective:

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND SITTING AS THE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THAT PORTION OF THE MARYLAND-WASHINGTON REGIONAL DISTRICT WITHIN MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Lead Sponsor: Council President Friedson

AN AMENDMENT to the Montgomery County Zoning Ordinance to:

- (1) change certain conditional uses to limited uses;
- (2) remove the application notice requirement for certain parking waivers;
- (3) allow approval of certain landscaping plans under the alternative method of compliance;
- (4) allow the Hearing Examiner to dismiss inactive conditional use applications;
- (5) allow the Hearing Examiner to approve waivers and refunds of filing fees under certain circumstances; and
- (6) generally amend the development procedures for certain regulatory approvals.

By amending the following sections of the Montgomery County Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 59 of the Montgomery County Code:

Division 1.4.	"Defined Terms"
Section 1.4.2.	"Specific Terms and Phrases Defined"
Division 3.1.	"Use Table"
Section 3.1.5.	"Transferable Development Rights"
Section 3.1.6.	"Use Table"
Division 3.2.	"Agricultural Uses"
Section 3.2.4.	"Equestrian Facility"
Division 3.3.	"Residential Uses"
Section 3.3.3.	"Accessory Residential Uses"
Division 3.4.	"Civic and Institutional Uses"
Section 3.4.4.	"Day Care Facility"
Division 3.5.	"Commercial Uses"
Section 3.5.11.	"Retail Sales and Service"

Section 3.5.13. "Vehicle Service"

Division 6.2. "Parking, Queuing, and Loading"

Section 6.2.4. "Parking Requirements"

Section 6.2.10. "Parking Waiver"

Division 6.3. "Open Space and Recreation"

Section 6.3.4. "Rural Open Space"

Division 6.8. "Alternative Compliance"

Section 6.8.1. "Alternative Method of Compliance"

Division 7.3. "Regulatory Approvals" Section 7.3.1. "Conditional Use" "Special Provisions"

Section 7.6.5. "Fees"

EXPLANATION: Boldface indicates a Heading or a defined term.

<u>Underlining</u> indicates text that is added to existing law by the original text amendment.

[Single boldface brackets] indicate text that is deleted from existing law by original text amendment.

<u>Double underlining</u> indicates text that is added to the text amendment by amendment.

[[Double boldface brackets]] indicate text that is deleted from the text amendment by amendment.

* * * indicates existing law unaffected by the text amendment.

ORDINANCE

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, sitting as the District Council for that portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District in Montgomery County, Maryland, approves the following ordinance:

1	Sec. 1. DIVISION 59-1.4 is amended as follows:
2	Division 1.4. Defined Terms
3	* * *
4	Section 1.4.2. Specific Terms and Phrases Defined
5	In this Chapter, terms that are not specifically defined have their ordinary meaning.
6	The following words and phrases have the meanings indicated.
7	* * *
8	Day Care Center (13 - 30 Persons): See Section [3.4.4.E.1] <u>3.4.4.D.1</u>
9	Day Care Center (Over 30 Persons): See Section [3.4.4.F.1] 3.4.4.E.1
10	* * *
11	[Group Day Care (9 - 12 Persons): See Section 3.4.4.D.1]
12	* * *
13	Home Health Practitioner: See Section 3.3.3.G.1
14	[Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact): See Section 3.3.3.G.3.a]
15	[Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact): See Section 3.3.3.G.4.a]
16	* * *
17	Section 3.1.6. Use Table
18	The following Use Table identifies uses allowed in each zone. Uses may be
19	modified in Overlay zones under Division 4.9.
20	* * *
21	Sec. 2. DIVISION 59-3.1 is amended as follows:
22	Division 3.1. Use Table
23	* * *
24	Section 3.1.5. Transferable Development Rights
25	A. The following uses are prohibited if the lot or parcel on which the use is
26	located is in the AR zone and is encumbered by a recorded Transfer of
27	Development Rights easement:

28			* * *	
29	2.	Resid	lential	
30		a.	Attached Accessory Dwelling Unit	
31		b.	Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit	
32		c.	Residential Care Facility (Up to 8 Persons)	
33		d.	Residential Care Facility (9 - 16 Persons)	
34		e.	Residential Care Facility (Over 16 Persons)	
35		f.	Guest House	
36		g.	Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)]	
37		[h.	Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact)]	
38		[i] <u>h</u> .	Home Occupation (Low Impact)	
39		[j] <u>i</u> .	Home Occupation (Major Impact)	
40	3.	Civic	and Institutional	
41		a.	Charitable, Philanthropic Institution	
42		[b.	Group Day Care (9 - 12 Persons)]	
43		[c] <u>b</u> .	Day Care Center (13 - 30 Persons)	
44		[d] <u>c</u> .	Day Care Center (Over 30 Persons)	
45		[e] <u>d</u> .	Private Club, Service Organization	
46		[f] <u>e</u> .	Religious Assembly	
47			* * *	
48	Section 3.1.	.6. Use	Table	
49	The follow:	ing Us	se Table identifies uses allowed in each zone.	Uses may be
50	modified in	Overla	ny zones under Division 4.9.	

USE OR USE GROUP	Definition s and Standards	Ag	Re	Rura esiden								Resid	dentia	al					1	mmer esiden			Emplo	oymei	nt	lr	ndustri	ial
								Resid	ential	Deta	ched			esident ownho			siden ulti-U											
		AR	R	RC	RNC	RE-	RE- 2C	RE-1	R- 200	R-90	R-60	R- 40	TLD	TMD	THD	R-30	R-20	R-10	CRN	CRT	CR	GR	NR	LSC	EOF	IL	IM	IH
AGRICULTURAL																												
* * *																												
Equestrian Facility	3.2.4	L/C	L/C	L/C	L/C	[C] L/C	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] L/C																			
* * *																												
RESIDENTIAL																												
* * *																												
Accessory Residential Uses	3.3.3																											
* * *																												
Home Health Practitioner	3.3.3.G	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	L/C	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	L/C	L/C	L/C	LC/	L/C	<u>L/C</u>	L/C	L/C	L/C	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	<u>L/C</u>	L/C	<u>L/C</u>	L/C	L/C	<u>L/C</u>			
[Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact)]	[3.3.3.G]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]			
[Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact)]	[3.3.3.G]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]			
* * *																												
Home Occupation (Major Impact)	3.3.3.H	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	[C] <u>L/C</u>		[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] L/C			
* * *																												
CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL																												
* * *																												
DAY CARE FACILITY	3.4.4																											
Family Day Care (Up to [8] <u>12</u> Persons)	3.4.4.C	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	

USE OR USE GROUP	Definition s and Standards	Ag	Re	Rura esiden								Resid	dentia	ıl					1	mmer esiden		I	Empl	oyme	nt	lı	ndustri	ial
								Resid	ential	Deta	ched			esiden wnho			siden ulti-U											
		AR	R	RC	RNC	RE- 2	RE- 2C	RE-1	R- 200	R-90	R-60	R- 40	TLD	TMD	THD	R-30	R-20	R-10	CRN	CRT	CR	GR	NR	LSC	EOF	IL	IM	IH
[Group Day Care (9 -12 Persons)]	[3.4.4.D]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[L]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[C]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	[P]	
Day Care Center (13 - 30 Persons)	[3.4.4.E] 3.4.4.D	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	С	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	Р	
* * *																												
COMMERCIAL																												
* * *																												
RETAIL SALES AND SERVICE	3.5.11																											
* * *																												
Retail/Service Establishment (85,001[-120,000] SF and Over)	3.5.11.B																			L	L	L	L			L	L	L
[Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 SF and Over)]	[3.5.11.B]																			[L]	[L]	[C]	[C]			[L]	[L]	[L]
* * *																												
Rural Country Market	3.5.11.D	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>		[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] L/C	[C] <u>L/C</u>	[C] <u>L/C</u>																			
* * *																												
VEHICLE SERVICE	3.5.13																											
Automobile Storage Lot	3.5.13.A																					С				Ŀ	<u>L</u>	<u>L</u>
* * *																												

52		* * *
53	Sec. 3. DIVIS	ION 59-3.2 is amended as follows:
54	Division 3.2. Agricu	ltural Uses
55		* * *
56	Section 3.2.4. Eques	trian Facility
57	A. Defined	
58	Equestrian Facility r	neans any structure or land that is used primarily for the care,
59	breeding, boarding,	rental, riding, or training of horses or the teaching of
60	equestrian skills. F	equestrian Facility includes events such as competitions,
61	exhibitions, or other	displays of equestrian skills.
62	B. Use Standard	s
63	1. Where	an Equestrian Facility is allowed as a limited use, it must
64	satisfy t	he following standards:
65	a. T	he minimum gross acreage per horse is as follows:
66	i.	for 1-2 horses, 2 acres;
67	ii	for 3-10 horses, one acre per horse; and
68	ii	i. for more than 10 horses, 10 acres plus an additional one-
69		half acre for each horse over 10.
70	b. In	the RNC zone, a maximum of 5 horses is allowed.
71	<u>c.</u> <u>I</u> 1	the RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200 zones, a maximum of 5
72	<u>h</u>	orses are allowed if the following standards are satisfied:
73	<u>i.</u>	The horses are kept for non-commercial purposes.
74		Commercial purposes include boarding horses not owned
75		by the resident for a fee, instruction in equestrian skills
76		for a fee, and events such as competitions, exhibitions, or
77		other displays of equestrian skills.

7	78		ii. The maximum number of horses is determined by the
7	79		minimum lot sizes in Section 3.2.4.B.1.a.
8	30		iii. State requirements for nutrient management concerning
8	31		animal waste must be met.
8	32	[c] <u>d</u> .	Any Equestrian Facility that keeps or boards more than 10
8	33		horses must meet all nutrient management, water quality, and
8	34		soil conservation standards of the County and State. A nutrient
8	35		management plan prepared by a qualified professional and a
8	36		soil conservation and water quality plan prepared by the
8	37		Montgomery Soil Conservation District Board must be
8	38		submitted through a letter of certification by the landowner to
8	39		DPS, or other relevant agency. Enforcement of the nutrient
9	90		management, water quality, and soil conservation plans is the
ç	91		responsibility of the State of Maryland. The landowner must
Ģ	92		obtain all plans within one year after starting operations.
Ģ	93	[d] <u>e</u> .	Each building, show ring, paddock, outdoor arena, and manure
ç	94		storage area must be located at least 100 feet from any existing
9	95		dwelling on an abutting property.
9	96	[e] <u>f</u> .	Amplified sound must satisfy Chapter 31B.
Ģ	97	[f]g.	Any outdoor arena lighting must direct light downward using
9	98		full cutoff fixtures; producing any glare or direct light onto
Ģ	99		nearby properties is prohibited. Illumination is prohibited after
10	00		10:00 p.m. on Friday or Saturday, and after 9:00 p.m. on
10)1		Sunday through Thursday.
10)2	[g] <u>h</u> .	Equestrian events are restricted as follows:

Site Requirements	Hours of O	peration	Number of Participants and Spectators									
	Su-Th	Fr-Sa	Event	Informal Event	Minor Event	Major Event						
			0-25	26-50	51-150	151-300						
Up to 17.9 acres	6am-9pm	6am-10pm	Unlimited on any day	None	None	None						
18 - 24.9 acres	6am-9pm	6am-10pm	Unlimited on any day	Unlimited on Sat, Sun and holidays; maximum of 6 weekdays per month	None	None						
25 - 74.9 acres	6am-9pm	6am-10pm	Unlimited on any day	Unlimited on Sat, Sun and holidays; maximum of 6 weekdays per month	Maximum of 7 per year	None						
75+ acres and direct access to a roadway with an Area Connector or higher classification	6am-9pm	6am-10pm	Unlimited on any day	Unlimited on Sat, Sun and holidays; maximum of 6 weekdays per month	Maximum of 7 per year	Maximum of 3 per year lasting up to 3 consecutive days each						

[h]i. A permit must be obtained from DPS for each event involving between 151 and 300 participants and spectators, per day. The applicant must specify the nature of the event, the anticipated attendance of spectators and participants, the number of days the event will take place, the hours during which the event will take place, the area to be used for parking, any traffic control measures intended to be put in place, and any other information determined by DPS to be relevant to the issuance of the permit.

A fee for issuance of the permit may be set by DPS.

[i]j. An Equestrian Facility conditional use application may be filed with the Hearing Examiner to deviate from any limited use standard regarding: number of participants and spectators; number of events each year; event acreage; or hours of operation. [An Equestrian Facility conditional use approval must be renewed every 5 years. Before the conditional use is

119			renev	ved the Hearing Examiner must evaluate the effectiveness
120			of the	e terms and conditions of the original approval.]
121	2.	When	re an E	Equestrian Facility is allowed as a conditional use, it may
122		be pe	rmitte	d by the Hearing Examiner under all applicable limited use
123		stand	lards,	Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use, and the following
124		stand	lards:	
125		a.	If the	subject lot abuts property in the AR zone, screening under
126			Divis	sion 6.5 is not required.
127		b.	In the	e AR, R, RC, and RNC zones:
128			i.	The Equestrian Facility must not adversely affect
129				abutting land uses or the surrounding road network.
130			ii.	In evaluating the compatibility of an Equestrian Facility
131				on the surrounding land uses, the Hearing Examiner must
132				consider that the impact of an agricultural use on
133				surrounding land uses in an Agricultural or Rural
134				Residential zone does not necessarily need to be
135				controlled as stringently as the impact in a Residential
136				zone.
137		c.	In the	e RE-2, RE-2C, RE-1, and R-200 zones:
138			i.	Any Equestrian Facility on less than 5 acres must
139				establish through a pasture maintenance plan, feeding
140				plan, and any other documentation the Hearing Examiner
141				requires, that the site contains sufficient open pasture to
142				ensure proper care of the horses and proper maintenance
143				of the site.
144			ii.	The Hearing Examiner may limit or regulate more
145				stringently than limited use standards the following:

146					(a)	the number of horses that may be kept or boarded;			
147					(b)	the number of horses that may be rented out for			
148						recreational riding or instruction;			
149					(c)	the number and type of equestrian events that may			
150						be held in a one-year period; and			
151					(d)	the hours of operation of any equestrian event or			
152						activity.			
153				iii.	The	facility operator must satisfy the state requirements			
154					for n	utrient management concerning animal waste.			
155						* * *			
156	Sec. 4. DIVISION 59-3.3 is amended as follows:								
157	Division 3.3. Residential Uses								
158						* * *			
159	Section 3.3.3. Accessory Residential Uses								
160						* * *			
161	G.	Hon	ne Hea	lth Pra	ctitio	oner			
162		1.	Defi	ned[, I1	n Gen	neral]			
163			<u>a.</u>	Home	е Не	alth Practitioner means the office of a health			
164				practi	itione	r who is licensed or certified by a Board under the			
165				Mary	land	Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, has an			
166				advar	nced o	degree in the field from an accredited educational			
167				institu	ution,	and who resides in the dwelling unit in which the			
168				office	e is lo	cated. Home Health Practitioner includes a registered			
169				nurse	or p	hysician's assistant if that person has an advanced			
170				degre	e in t	the field and practices independently. Home Health			
171				Practi	itione	r does not include an electrologist, mortician, nursing			

home administrator, pharmacist, or veterinarian.

172

173		<u>b.</u>	Home	e Health Practitioner is limited to 2 health practitioners,
174			one o	of whom must be a resident, and up to 3 non-resident
175			suppo	ort persons in any 24-hour period.
176	2.	Use S	Standa	rds [for All Home Health Practitioners]
177		a.	А Но	ome Health Practitioner is prohibited in an apartment,
178			[mult	i use] multi-use, and general building type.
179		b.	Scree	ning under Division 6.5 is not required.
180		c.	To m	aintain the residential character of the dwelling:
181			i.	The use must be conducted by an individual or
182				individuals residing in the dwelling unit.
183			ii.	The use must be conducted within the dwelling unit or
184				any accessory building and not in any open yard area.
185				The use must be subordinate to the use of the dwelling
186				for residential purposes and any external modifications
187				must be consistent with the residential appearance of the
188				dwelling unit.
189			iii.	Exterior storage of goods or equipment is prohibited.
190			iv.	The maximum amount of floor area used for the Home
191				Health Practitioner is 33% of the eligible floor area of the
192				dwelling unit plus any existing accessory building on the
193				same lot, or 1,500 square feet, whichever is less.
194			v.	An existing accessory building may be used for the home
195				health practice, but external evidence of such use is
196				prohibited. Only one accessory building may be used and
197				it must be an eligible area.
198			vi.	Equipment or facilities are limited to:
199				(a) office equipment; or

200			(b) medical equipment.
201		vii.	Any equipment or process that creates a nuisance or
202			violates any law is prohibited in connection with the
203			operation of a home health practice.
204		viii.	Disposal of medical waste must be regulated by State
205			laws and regulations.
206		ix.	Truck deliveries are prohibited, except for parcels
207			delivered by public or private parcel services that
208			customarily make residential deliveries.
209		х.	Appointments are required for visits, but emergency
210			patients may visit outside the specified hours or without
211			appointment.
212		xi.	Clients, patients, or other visitors must be informed of the
213			correct address and parking location in advance of any
214			appointment.
215		xii.	In a Residential zone, any additional parking must be
216			located behind the front building line.
217		d. The	applicant must provide valid proof of home address as
218		estal	olished by Executive regulations under Method 2 of
219		Cha	pter 2 (Section 2A-15).
220		e. In th	e AR zone, this use may be prohibited under Section 3.1.5,
221		Tran	sferable Development Rights.
222	[3.	Home Hea	alth Practitioner (Low Impact)]
223		[a. Defi	ned
224		Home He	alth Practitioner (Low Impact) means a Home Health
225		Practitione	r that is limited to 2 resident health practitioners and one
226		non-reside	nt support person in a 24-hour period.]

227	[b.	Use Standards
228	Wher	e a Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) is allowed as a
229	limite	ed use, it must satisfy the following standards:]
230	[i] <u>f</u> .	Treatment of more than one patient or client at a time is
231		allowed, but not more than 3 vehicle trips containing not more
232		than 10 patients may come or leave at the same appointment
233		time.
234	<u>g.</u>	A Home Health Practitioner may only operate between the
235		hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.
236	[ii] <u>h.</u>	The sale of goods on the premises is prohibited, except for
237		medication prescribed by the health practitioner or a prescribed
238		remedial device that cannot be obtained from a commercial
239		source.
240	[iii] <u>i.</u>	A maximum of one Home Occupation [(Low Impact)] and one
241		Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] is allowed on the
242		same site. A Home Health Practitioner is not permitted on a site
243		that is already approved for any other conditional use under
244		Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use or a Home Occupation (Major
245		Impact).
246	[iv] <u>j.</u>	An indoor waiting room must be provided if more than one
247		patient or client will be on the premises at the same time.
248	[v] <u>k.</u>	Parking must be screened under Section 6.2.9.B or Section
249		6.2.9.C, depending on the number of parking spaces provided.
250	<u>1.</u>	Where a Home Health Practitioner is allowed as a conditional
251		use, the limited use standards of this Section apply, except the
252		hours of operation; number of clients, customers, patients, or
253		other visitors allowed; and the on-site sale of goods may be

254	determined by the Hearing Examiner under Section 7.3.1,
255	Conditional Use.
256	[c]m. Registration
257	Any Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] must register
258	with DPS.
259	i. Application Requirements
260	An application for registration must include the
261	following:
262	(a) a signed affidavit of compliance that affirms that
263	the applicant:
264	(1) satisfies the applicable standards in Section
265	3.3.3.G; and
266	(2) will take whatever action is required by DPS
267	to bring the Home Health Practitioner (Low
268	Impact) into compliance if complaints of
269	noncompliance are received and verified;
270	(b) the manner in which the operation of the Home
271	Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] satisfies the use
272	standards in Section 3.3.3.G;
273	(c) the location of the lot by street address and either
274	lot and block number or liber and folio;
275	(d) the zone in which the lot is located;
276	(e) area of the lot or parcel, in square feet or acres;
277	(f) the total floor area of the dwelling unit and the
278	amount of floor area to be used for the Home
279	Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)], as well as the
280	floor area of any existing accessory building to be

281			used for the Home Health Practitioner [(Low
282			Impact)];
283		(g)	the location and number of off-street parking
284			spaces;
285		(h)	proof of home address;
286		(i)	other pertinent information required by DPS;
287		(j)	a copy of the use-and-occupancy permit required
288			under Section 7.4.2; and
289		(k)	the location of any indoor waiting room for
290			patients, if more than one patient will be on the
291			premises at the same time.
292	ii.	Appı	oval
293		(a)	DPS must issue a Certificate of Registration if the
294			applicant:
295			(1) satisfies Section 3.3.3.G; and
296			(2) has an approved on-site inspection.
297		(b)	DPS must maintain a Home Health Practitioner
298			Registry that is readily available for public
299			inspection.
300	iii.	Com	pliance and Enforcement
301		(a)	If DPS receives a complaint about a Home Health
302			Practitioner [(Low Impact)], an inspector must
303			inspect the property and determine, within 90 days
304			after receipt of the complaint, whether there is a
305			violation of the provisions of Section 3.3.3.G.
306		(b)	If DPS determines that there is a violation, DPS
307			may issue a warning notice, and the violation must

308	
309	
310	
311	
312	
313	
314	
315	
316	
317	
318	
319	
320	
321	
322	
323	
324	
325	
326	
327	
328	
329	
330	
331	
332	
333	
334	

be corrected within 30 days after the warning notice is issued.

- (1) In the case of any violation that could be remedied with a conditional use approval, a petition must be filed within 60 days after the warning notice is issued for a conditional use for a Home Health Practitioner [(Major Impact)] under Section 3.3.3.G.4.
- (2) A hearing on a petition for a conditional use filed in the case of a Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] found to be in violation of Section 3.3.3.G must be scheduled within 30 days, or as soon as the Hearing Examiner's calendar permits. The Hearing Examiner does not have authority to grant the applicant any extension of the hearing in such a case.
- (3) Operation of the Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] may continue until the Hearing Examiner has acted on the petition, if the violation is corrected before the application for conditional use is filed. If the Hearing Examiner denies the conditional use application, the Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] must cease immediately or operate under the requirements for a Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)].

335			(c)	DPS	may issue a citation u	ınder Divis	ion 7.8:	
336				(1)	immediately, instea	ad of a w	arning	notice
337					under Section 3.3.3.	.G.3.c.iii(b)); or	
338				(2)	30 days or more a	after the w	arning	notice
339					was issued under Se	ection 3.3.3	.G.3.c.ii	i(b).
340	[4.	Home Hea	lth Pr	actitio	ner (Major Impact)			
341		a. Defin	ned					
342		Home Hea	lth Pr	actitio	ner (Major Impact)	means a	Home I	Health
343		Practitioner	r limite	ed to 2	resident health prac	ctitioners a	nd 2 or	more
344		non-resider	nt supp	ort per	sons in any 24-hour p	period.]		
345		[b. Use S	Standa	ards				
346		Where a H	Iome I	Health	Practitioner (Major	Impact) is	allowed	d as a
347		conditional	use, i	t may	be permitted by the	Hearing Ex	kaminer	under
348		Section 7.3	.1, Coı	ndition	al Use, and the follow	ving standa	rds:	
349		i.	The l	hours o	f operation and num	ber of clien	its, custo	mers,
350			patie	nts or	other visitors allow	ed during	that tin	ne are
351			deter	mined	by the Hearing Exan	niner.		
352		ii.	The 1	maxim	um number of delive	ries is dete	rmined 1	by the
353			Hear	ing Ex	aminer.			
354		iii.	On-s	ite sal	e of goods is dete	rmined by	the H	earing
355			Exan	niner.				
356		iv.	The	Hearin	g Examiner may gra	nt a conditi	ional use	e for a
357			Hom	е Неа	th Practitioner (Maj	or Impact)	on the	same
358			site a	ıs a Ho	me Health Practition	er (Low Im	pact), a	Home
359			Occu	pation	(Low Impact), or a	Home Oc	ecupation	n (No
360			Impa	ct) if i	finds that both toge	ther can be	operate	ed in a

361		manner that satisfies Section 3.3.3.G.4 and Section 7.3.1,					
362		Conditional Use.					
363		v. The Hearing Examiner must not grant a conditional use					
364		for a Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact) where the					
365		site is already approved for any other conditional use					
366		under Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use.					
367		vi. An indoor waiting room must be provided.					
368		vii. Screening under Division 6.5 is not required.]					
369		* * *					
370	Н.	Home Occupation					
371		1. Defined, In General					
372		Home Occupation means any occupation that provides a service or product					
373		and is conducted within a dwelling unit by a resident of the dwelling unit.					
374		Home Occupation does not include Home Health Practitioner (see Section					
375		3.3.3.G, Home Health Practitioner), Bed and Breakfast (see Section 3.5.6.B,					
376		Bed and Breakfast), Day Care Facility (see Section 3.4.4, Day Care					
377		Facility), display of furniture not made in the home for sale in the home or at					
378		an off-site location, Landscape Contractor (see Section 3.5.5, Landscape					
379		Contractor), or Educational Institution (Private) (see Section 3.4.5,					
380		Educational Institution (Private)).					
381		2. Use Standards for all Home Occupations					
382		a. Screening under Division 6.5 is not required.					
383		b. To maintain the residential character of the dwelling:					
384		i. The use must be conducted by an individual or					
385		individuals residing in the dwelling unit.					
386		ii. The use must be conducted within the dwelling unit or					
387		any accessory building and not in any open yard area.					

388		The use must be subordinate to the use of the dwelling
389		for residential purposes and require no external
390		modifications that detract from the residential appearance
391		of the dwelling unit.
392	iii.	Exterior storage of goods or equipment is prohibited.
393	iv.	The maximum amount of floor area used for the Home
394		Occupation must not exceed 33% of the total eligible
395		area of the dwelling unit and any existing accessory
396		building on the same lot, or 1,500 square feet, whichever
397		is less.
398	v.	An existing accessory building may be used for the
399		Home Occupation, but external evidence of such use is
400		prohibited. Only one accessory building may be used and
401		it must be an eligible area.
402	vi.	Equipment or facilities are limited to:
403		(a) domestic or household equipment;
404		(b) office equipment; or
405		(c) any equipment reasonably necessary for art
406		production, handcrafts, or making beer or wine.
407	vii.	Any equipment or process that creates a nuisance or
408		violates any law is prohibited in the operation of a Home
409		Occupation.
410	viii.	A Home Occupation is prohibited to use, store, or
411		dispose of:
412		(a) a quantity of a petroleum product sufficient to
413		require a special license or permit from The Fire
414		Marshal; or

415			(b) any material defined as hazardous or required to
416			have a special handling license under State and
417			County law.
418		ix.	Truck deliveries are prohibited, except for parcels
419			delivered by public or private parcel services that
420			customarily make residential deliveries.
421		х.	Display or storage of merchandise to be delivered must
422		:	not be visible outside of the residence and must be
423			contained within the maximum floor area available for
424			the Home Occupation.
425		xi.	The storage of equipment or merchandise for collection
426			by employees who will use or deliver it at off-site
427			locations is prohibited.
428		xii.	A second kitchen in the home for catering or making
429			food for off-site delivery or sales is prohibited.
430		xiii.	The maintenance or repair of motor vehicles for
431			compensation is prohibited.
432			* * *
433	5.	Home Occup	pation (Major Impact)
434		a. Define	ed
435		Home Occup	pation (Major Impact) means a Home Occupation that is
436		limited to 2	non-resident employees in any 24-hour period and is
437		regulated und	der Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use.
438		b. Use St	andards
439		<u>i.</u>	Where a Home Occupation (Major Impact) is allowed as
440			a limited use, it must satisfy the following standards:

441	<u>(a)</u>	The	maximu	ım number	of visits is	35 p	er week,
442		and 1	no more	than 8 per	day, exclud	<u>ling</u> d	<u>leliveries</u>
443		and 1	the arriv	al and depa	arture of an	y <u>non</u>	-resident
444		<u>empl</u>	oyee.				
445	<u>(b)</u>	Visit	ors mus	t wait inside	the dwellin	g <u>unit</u>	<u>•</u>
446	<u>(c)</u>	<u>In-pe</u>	erson sal	e of goods is	s limited to:		
447		<u>(1)</u>	the pro	oducts of dre	essmaking,	hand-	weaving,
448			block-	printing, th	<u>ne making</u>	<u>of</u>	jewelry,
449			pottery	y or musical	instrumen	ts by	hand, or
450			simila	r arts or ha	nd-crafts pe	erform	ned by a
451			reside	nt of the dwe	elling; and		
452		<u>(2)</u>	<u>a</u> max	imum of 5	sales per n	<u>ionth</u>	of items
453			ordere	d for deliv	<u>very</u> at a	<u>later</u>	date to
454			custon	ners at other	er locations	(del	ivery of
455			goods	must occur	off-site).		
456	<u>(d)</u>	<u>Disp</u>	lay or st	orage of goo	ods is limited	<u>d to:</u>	
457		<u>(1)</u>	<u>the</u>	products	listed	<u>in</u>	Section
458			3.3.3.I	H.5.b.i.(c); a1	<u>nd</u>		
459		<u>(2)</u>	sample	es of mercha	ndise that n	1ay be	ordered
460			by cus	tomers for d	elivery at ot	her lo	cations.
461	<u>(e)</u>	Disp	lay or s	torage of me	erchandise t	<u>o be c</u>	delivered
462		must	not be	visible outs	side of the	reside	ence and
463		must	be cont	tained within	n the maxin	<u>num</u> <u>f</u>	loor area
464		<u>avail</u>	able for	the Home O	ccupation.		
465	<u>(f)</u>	Hom	e Occup	oation (Majo	r Impact) m	ay no	t be on a
466		<u>site</u>	that i	is <u>already</u>	approved	<u>for</u>	another

467		<u>cc</u>	onditional use under Section 7.3.1, Conditional
468		<u>U</u>	Jse or Home Health Care Practitioner.
469		<u>(h)</u> <u>T</u>	The applicant must provide valid proof of home
470		<u>ac</u>	ddress as established by Executive regulations
471		<u>uı</u>	nder Method 2 of Chapter 2 (Section 2A-15).
472		<u>(i)</u> <u>So</u>	creening under Division 6.5 is not required.
473	<u>ii.</u>	Where a	a Home Occupation (Major Impact) is allowed as
474		a condi	tional use, it may be permitted by the Hearing
475		Examin	er under Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use, and the
476		followin	ng standards:
477		[i.] <u>(a)</u> T	The maximum number of visits and deliveries is
478		de	etermined by the Hearing Examiner.
479		[ii.] <u>(b)</u>	An indoor waiting room must be provided.
480		[iii.] <u>(c)</u>	In-person sale of goods is limited to:
481		[((a)](1) the products of dressmaking, hand-
482			weaving, block-printing, the making of
483			jewelry, pottery or musical instruments by
484			hand, or similar arts or hand-crafts
485			performed by a resident of the dwelling; and
486		[((b)](2) a maximum of 5 sales per month of
487			items ordered for delivery at a later date to
488			customers at other locations (delivery of
489			goods must occur off-site).
490		[iv.] <u>(d)</u>	Display or storage of goods is limited to:
491		[((a)](1) the products listed in Section
492			3.3.3.H.5.b.iii.(a); and

493	[(b)](2) samples of merchandise that may be
494	ordered by customers for delivery at other
495	locations.
496	[v.](e) Display or storage of merchandise to be
497	delivered must not be visible outside of the
498	residence and must be contained within the
499	maximum floor area available for the Home
500	Occupation.
501	[vi.](f) The Hearing Examiner may grant a
502	conditional use for a Home Occupation (Major
503	Impact) on the same site as a Home Occupation
504	(Low Impact), a Home Occupation (No Impact), or
505	a Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)] if [it]
506	the Hearing Examiner finds that both together can
507	be operated in a manner that satisfies Section
508	3.3.3.H.5 and Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use.
509	[vii.](g) The Hearing Examiner must not grant a
510	conditional use for a Home Occupation (Major
511	Impact) where the site is already approved for any
512	other conditional use under Section 7.3.1,
513	Conditional Use.
514	[viii.](h) The applicant must provide valid proof of
515	home address as established by Executive
516	regulations under Method 2 of Chapter 2 (Section
517	2A-15).
518	[ix.](i) Screening under Division 6.5 is not required.

519	[x.](j) In the AR zone, this use may be prohibited
520	under Section 3.1.5, Transferable Development
521	Rights.
522	* * *
523	Sec. 5. DIVISION 59-3.4 is amended as follows:
524	Division 3.4. Civic and Institutional Uses
525	* * *
526	Section 3.4.4. Day Care Facility
527	A. Defined, In General
528	Day Care Facility means an establishment where care is provided for less than 24
529	hours a day, for which the provider is paid, for any of the following: children under
530	the age of 17 years; developmentally disabled persons; handicapped individual; or
531	any elderly individual. Day Care Facility includes accessory preschool and
532	kindergarten educational programs that are accredited by the State.
533	B. Exemptions
534	The conditional use standards in Section [3.4.4.E.2.b] <u>3.4.4.D.2.b</u> and Section
535	[3.4.4.F.2.b.i] <u>3.4.4.E.2.b.i</u> through Section [3.4.4.F.2.b.v] <u>3.4.4.E.2.b.v</u> do not
536	apply to a Day Care Center operated by a nonprofit organization and located in:
537	1. a structure owned or leased by a religious organization and used for
538	worship, or a structure located on premises owned or leased by a
539	religious organization that is adjacent to premises regularly used as a
540	place of worship;
541	2. a structure used for private, parochial education purposes that is
542	exempted from the conditional uses standards under Section 3.4.5,
543	Educational Institution (Private); or
544	3. a publicly-owned building.
545	C. Family Day Care (Up to [8] <u>12</u> Persons)

Defined

Family Day Care (Up to [8] 12 Persons) means a Day Care Facility for a maximum of [8] 12 people in a dwelling where for child day care the registrant is the provider and a resident, or the registrant is not a resident but more than half the children cared for are residents. The provider's own children under the age of 6 are counted [within the group of 8] toward the maximum number of people allowed. For care of senior adults or persons with disabilities the registrant is the provider. Family Day Care (Up to [8] 12 Persons) does not include more than 2 non-resident staff members on-site at any time or a provider that is not a resident and does not meet the requirement for a non-resident provider (see Section [3.4.4.E] 3.4.4.D., Day Care Center (13-30 Persons)).

- 1. The registrant must be the provider and a resident. If the provider is not a resident, the provider may file a conditional use application for a Day Care Center (13-30 Persons) (see Section 3.4.4.D).
- 561 <u>2. No more than 3 non-resident staff members may be on-site at any</u>
 562 <u>time.</u>

563 [D. Group Day Care (9 -12 Persons)

1. Defined

Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) means a Day Care Facility for 9 to 12 people where staffing, operations, and structures comply with State and local regulations and the provider's own children under the age of 6 are counted towards the maximum number of people allowed.

2. Use Standards

a. Where a Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) is allowed as a limited use, it must satisfy the following standards:

572	i.	The facility must not be located in a townhouse or duplex
573		building type.
574	ii	. In a detached house, the registrant is the provider and a
575		resident. If the provider is not a resident, the provider
576		may file a conditional use application for a Day Care
577		Center (13-30 Persons) (see Section 3.4.4.E).
578	ii	i. In a detached house, no more than 3 non-resident staff
579		members are on-site at any time.
580	iv	In the AR zone, this use may be prohibited under Section
581		3.1.5, Transferable Development Rights.
582	b. V	Where a Group Day Care (9-12 Persons) is allowed as a
583	c	onditional use, it may be permitted by the Hearing Examiner
584	u	nder all limited use standards and Section 7.3.1, Conditional
585	U	Jse.]
586	[E] <u>D</u> . Day Care Cer	nter (13 - 30 Persons)
587	1. Defined	I
588	Day Care Cer	nter (13-30 Persons) means a Day Care Facility for 13 to 30
589	people where	staffing, operations, and structures satisfy State and local
590	regulations. A	Day Care Center (13-30 Persons) includes a Family Day Care
591	(Up to [8] <u>12</u>	Persons) [and Group Day Care (9-12 Persons)] where the
592	provider is n	ot a resident and cannot meet the non-resident provider
593	requirement.	
594	2. Use Sta	ndards
595	Where a Day	Care Center (13-30 Persons) is allowed as a conditional use, it
596	may be permi	tted by the Hearing Examiner under Section 7.3.1, Conditional
597	Use, and the fe	ollowing standards:

598		a.	The facility must not be located in a townhouse or duplex
599			building type.
600		b.	An adequate area for the discharge and pick up of children is
601			provided.
602		c.	The number of parking spaces under Division 6.2 may be
603			reduced if the applicant demonstrates that the full number of
604			spaces is not necessary because:
605			i. existing parking spaces are available on abutting property
606			or on the street abutting the site that will satisfy the
607			number of spaces required; or
608			ii. a reduced number of spaces would be sufficient to
609			accommodate the proposed use without adversely
610			affecting the surrounding area or creating safety
611			problems.
612		d.	For a Family Day Care where the provider is not a resident and
613			cannot meet the non-resident provider requirement, screening
614			under Division 6.5 is not required.
615		e.	In the AR zone, this use may be prohibited under Section 3.1.5,
616			Transferable Development Rights.
617	[F] <u>E</u> .	Day Care	Center (Over 30 Persons)
618			* * *
619		Sec. 6. DIV	VISION 59-3.5 is amended as follows:
620	Divisi	on 3.5. Cor	nmercial Uses
621			* * *
622	Section	on 3.5.11. R	etail Sales and Service
623			* * *
624	R	Ratail/Sam	vice Establishment

625	1.	Defi	ned		
626	Reta	ail/Serv	vice Es	stablish	ment means a business providing personal services
627	or sa	ale of g	goods	to the p	bublic. Retail/Service Establishment does not include
628	Anii	mal Se	rvices	(see S	Section 3.5.1, Animal Services) or Drive-Thru (see
629	Sect	tion 3.5	5.14.E,	Drive-	Thru).
630	2.	Use	Stand	ards	
631		a.	Whe	ere a R	etail/Service Establishment is allowed as a limited
632			use,	it must	satisfy the following standards:
633			i.	In the	e R-10 zone:
634				(a)	The apartment building type must contain a
635					minimum of 150 dwelling units, be a minimum of
636					60 feet in height, and be on a site with a minimum
637					of 5 acres.
638				(b)	A maximum of 10% of the gross floor area of the
639					building or 10,000 square feet, whichever is less,
640					may be used for the Retail/Service Establishment
641					use.
642				(c)	Only small-scale retail sales and personal service
643					establishments are permitted. Small-scale retail
644					sales and personal service establishments provide
645					convenience goods and services typically requiring
646					frequent purchase and a minimum of travel by
647					occupants of the nearby commercial area and
648					adjacent residential neighborhood.
649			ii.	In the	e CRN zone:
650				(a)	If the subject lot abuts or confronts a property
651					zoned Agricultural, Rural Residential, or

652		Residential Detached that is vacant or improved
653		with an agricultural or residential use, site plan
654		approval is required under Section 7.3.4.
655		(b) A Retail/Service Establishment over 15,000 square
656		feet of gross floor area must be a grocery store.
657 i	ii.	In the CRT, GR, and NR zones, if the subject lot abuts or
658		confronts a property zoned Agricultural, Rural
659		Residential, or Residential Detached that is vacant or
660		improved with an agricultural or residential use, site plan
661		approval is required under Section 7.3.4.
662 i	V.	In the CRT, CR, GR, and NR zones, where a
663		development is located within 1/2 mile of a Metro station
664		entrance and has a minimum 50,000 square foot footprint
665		or a minimum of 100,000 square feet of all gross floor
666		area designed for a single user, it must satisfy the
667		following standards:
668		(a) In addition to any street-facing entrance
669		requirement, all sides of a building that front an
670		abutting public right-of-way must have at least one
671		active entrance.
672		(b) Parking facilities, excluding access driveways,
673		must be located below-grade or in a structure
674		behind or within the primary building.
675		(c) The maximum building footprint of the area
676		designed for a single Retail/Service Establishment
677		use is 80,000 square feet.

681	
682	
683	
684	
685	
686	
687	
688	
689	
690	
691	
692	
693	
694	
695	
696	
697	
698	
699	
700	
701	
702	
703	
704	

678

679

- (d) Additional floor area equal to at least 20% of the footprint designed for the largest Retail/Service Establishment must be provided as street level retail spaces with less than 5,000 square feet of tenant gross floor area each. These spaces must be located at street level, and a secondary entrance accessing the primary Retail/Service Establishment use is prohibited. At least 50% of the additional tenant space(s) must be located along the facade where the primary active customer entrance for the largest single Retail/Service Establishment is located.
- (e) If applicable, full architectural parapets or equivalent features must be used around the entire building to conceal rooftop mechanical equipment.
- (f) Any residential floor area or office floor area must be equal to or greater than the gross floor area designed for the subject Retail/ Service Establishment. At least 50% of the gross floor area of the non-retail component must be located above the street level retail footprint.
- (g) Section 3.5.11.B.2.a.iv.(c) through Section 3.5.11.B.2.a.iv.(f) do not apply if more than 75% of the gross floor area of the Retail/ Service Establishment is a cellar.
- (h) For a project greater than 500,000 square feet of gross floor area, the Planning Board may approve

705		a development that does not satisfy Section
706		3.5.11.B.2.a.iv.(a) through Section 3.5.11.B.2.a.iv.
707		(f) if it finds that the project, through an alternative
708		design, results in a more appropriate configuration
709		of the site.
710		(i) Section 3.5.11.B.2.a.iv does not apply to a regional
711		shopping center.
712	v.	In the EOF zone, Retail/Service Establishment is limited
713		to a maximum of 30% of the gross floor area on the
714		subject site.
715	vi.	In the LSC zone, if the tract is larger than 5 acres,
716		Retail/Service Establishment is limited to a maximum of
717		10% of the gross floor area of development approved
718		under one application. If site plan approval is required
719		under Section 7.3.4, the Planning Board may approve a
720		maximum of 15% of the gross floor area for
721		Retail/Service Establishment if the Planning Board finds
722		that unique circumstances are present and the area would
723		be enhanced by additional retail activity.
724	vii.	In the IL and IM zones, Retail/Service Establishment is
725		limited to:
726		(a) building and food service supply, home design and
727		furnishings, wholesale or retail;
728		(b) computer programming and software sales and
729		service, including data banks, and data retrieval;

730		(c)	wholesale trades limited to sale or rental of
731			products intended for industrial or commercial
732			users; and
733		(d)	other Retail/Service Establishment uses or a
734			combination of Office, Retail/Service
735			Establishment, or Restaurant uses that occupy a
736			maximum of 35% of the mapped FAR.
737	Viii.	In the	e IH zone, Retail/Service Establishment is limited to:
738		(a)	building and food service supply, home design and
739			furnishings, wholesale or retail;
740		(b)	computer programming and software sales and
741			service, including data banks, and data retrieval;
742			and
743		(c)	wholesale trades limited to sale or rental of
744			products intended for industrial or commercial
745			users.
746	ix.	For R	Retail/Service Retail/Service Establishments 120,001
747		squar	re feet and over:
748		<u>(a)</u>	Any facade longer than 100 horizontal feet must
749			incorporate wall plane projections or recesses.
750		<u>(b)</u>	Street level retail facades that front public or
751			private streets or parking areas must provide
752			transparent glazing for at least 60 percent of the
753			horizontal length of the building façade between
754			the height, at a minimum, of 3 feet and 8 feet
755			above the walkway grade. Transparent glazing

756					inclu	<u>ides</u>	transparent	windows,	unobstr	<u>ucted</u>
757					<u>displ</u>	lay wi	ndows, or trai	nsparent stor	e doors.	
758				<u>(c)</u>	<u>All</u> s	sides c	of a building t	hat front an	abutting p	ublic
759					<u>right</u>	-of-w	ay must have	at least on	e active r	etail,
760					resid	lential	, or office ent	rance.		
761				<u>(d)</u>	Area	s for	storage, trucl	<u>k</u> parking, tr	ash collec	ction,
762					or co	ompac	tion and load	ing must be	screened	<u>from</u>
763					publi	<u>ic rigł</u>	ats-of-way.			
764				<u>(e)</u>	Varia	<u>ations</u>	in roofling	es <u>must</u> be	e used	<u>when</u>
765					possi	ible. I	Full architect	ural parapets	or equiv	<u>alent</u>
766					<u>featu</u>	ires m	ust be used a	round the en	tire buildi	ng to
767					conc	eal ro	oftop mechan	ical equipme	ent.	
768			[b. \	Where a	a Retail	/ Ser	vice Establi	shment is	allowed	as a
769			(condition	al use, i	it may	be permitted	l by the Hea	ring Exar	niner
770			ι	ınder S	ection 7	7.3.1,	Conditional	Use, and	the follo	wing
771			S	standard:						
772			-	The build	ding mus	st be	designed in a	way that re	duces its	scale
773			8	and contr	ibutes to	its vi	sual interest.	Long buildir	ng walls sl	nould
774			1	nave pro	jections,	reces	sions, or oth	er effective	treatments	s that
775			i	mprove	building	desig	n.]			
776						* *	*			
777	D.	Rura	al Count	ry Mark	ket					
778		1.	Define	d						

Rural Country Market means the display and retail sale in a rural or residential area of agricultural products and farm food products certified as non-potentially hazardous by the Department of Health and Human Services. A Rural Country Market includes the display and sale of non-

779

780

781

edible farm products only if the products are grown and processed on farms in the State of Maryland. Rural Country Market does not include the sale or storage of bread, cheese, or other foodstuffs produced in a commercial kitchen, or an eating and drinking establishments (see Section 3.5.3, Eating and Drinking).

2. Use Standards

- <u>a.</u> Where a Rural Country Market is allowed as a [conditional] <u>limited</u> use, it [may be permitted by the Hearing Examiner under Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use, and] <u>must satisfy</u> the following standards:
 - [a] \underline{i} . The minimum tract area is 2 acres.
 - [b]<u>ii</u>. The maximum height is 20 feet, unless located in an existing building.
 - [c]iii. The minimum setback from the street and from any side or rear lot line is 50 feet [except that the minimum setback from the street may be reduced to 25 feet if the Hearing Examiner finds that the smaller setback would be compatible with surrounding uses. The Hearing Examiner may approve the use of an existing structure that does not meet these requirements if the Hearing Examiner finds that the use is suitable and compatible with the surrounding area].
- b. Where a Rural Country Market is allowed as a conditional use, it may be permitted by the Hearing Examiner under Section 7.3.1, Conditional Use, all applicable limited use standards, and the following standards:

809				<u>i.</u>	<u>The minimum s</u>	setback	<u>from</u>	the s	<u>treet</u>	<u>under</u>
810					.5.11.D.2.a.iii. may	y <u>be</u> redu	ced to 2	5 feet it	the H	earing
811					Examiner finds th	nat the	<u>smaller</u>	setback	<u>wou</u>	ıld be
812					ompatible with sur	rounding	uses.			
813				<u>ii.</u>	<u>The Hearing Exan</u>	niner ma	ay appro	ove the	<u>use</u>	of an
814					xisting structure that	at does n	ot meet 1	these re	<u>quirem</u>	<u>ients if</u>
815					ne <u>Hearing Examir</u>	ner finds	that the	use is	<u>suitab</u>	le and
816					ompatible with the	surround	ling area	· <u>•</u>		
817					* * :	*				
818	Secti	on 3.5	5.13. V	ehicle	rvice					
819	A.	Auto	omobil	e Stor	e Lot					
820		1.	Defin	ned						
821		Auto	mobile	Stora	Lot means the st	torage of	f automo	obiles in	n conn	nection
822		with	a tow	ing o	ration. Automobile	e Storage	e Lot do	oes not	inclu	de the
823		stora	ige of j	unked	rs.					
824		2.	Use S	Standa	ls					
825			<u>a.</u>	When	an <u>Automobile</u> Stor	rage Lot	is allowe	<u>ed as a l</u>	<u>imited</u>	use, it
826				must	tisfy the following	standard	<u>s:</u>			
827				<u>i.</u>	Vehicles must be sto	ored or p	arked or	nly on a	hard s	urface
828					nat is constructed	of impe	ervious 1	material	resist	ant to
829					rosion, is adequate	ely treate	ed to pre	event di	<u>ıst em</u>	ission,
830					nd is surrounded	by a rai	ised cur	b. The	parkin	ıg and
831					torage area must b	e set bac	<u>k 15 fee</u>	et from	any ris	ght-of-
832					vay, 25 feet from	<u>any lo</u>	<u>t line</u> a	butting	land	<u>in</u> an
833					Agricultural, Rural	Resident	<u>ial, or E</u>	Resident	ial De	tached
834					one, and 3 feet from	n any oth	ner lot lir	<u>ne.</u>		

835		<u>ii.</u>	Access to the site from a street with a residential
836			classification is prohibited.
837		<u>iii.</u>	The tract on which an Automobile Storage Lot use is
838			allowed must be less than 10 acres in size.
839		<u>iv.</u>	On-site illumination must be 0.5 footcandles or less at the
840			lot line, excluding street lights within the right-of-way.
841	<u>b.</u>	Whe	re an Automobile Storage Lot is allowed as a conditional
842		use,	it may be permitted by the Hearing Examiner under
843		Secti	on 7.3.1, Conditional Use.
844			
845			* * *
846	Sec. 7. DIV	ISIO	N 59-6.2 is amended as follows:
847	Division 6.2. Parl	king, (Queuing, and Loading
848			* * *
849	Section 6.2.4. Par	king	Requirements
850	* * *		
851	B. Vehicle Par	king	Spaces

			Commercial/Residential and Employment Zones			
USE or USE GROUP	Metric	AGRICULTURAL, RURAL RESIDENTIAL, RESIDENTIAL, AND INDUSTRIAL ZONES	Within a Parkir Reduced P	Outside a Parking Lot District or Reduced Parking Area		
		Baseline Minimum	Baseline Minimum	Baseline Maximum	Baseline Minimum	
RESIDENTIAL						
* * *						
ACCESSORY RESIDENTIAL USES						
* * *						
	Home Health Practitioner	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
Home Health Practitioner [(Low Impact)]	Non-Resident Employee	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
[Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact)]	plus, Each Client Allowed per Hour	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
	(in addition to residential spaces)					
* * *						
CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL						
* * *						
DAY CARE FACILITY						
* * *						
Family Day Care [Group Day Care]	Non-Resident Employee (in addition to residential spaces) Required spaces may be allowed on the street abutting the site	1.00	0.50	1.50	1.00	
* * *						

854	Section 6.2.10. Parking Waiver				
855	The deciding body may waive any requirement of Division 6.2, except the required				
856	parking in a Parking Lot District under Section 6.2.3.H.1, if the alternative design				
857	satis	satisfies Section 6.2.1. [Any request for a waiver of the vehicle parking space			request for a waiver of the vehicle parking space
858	requ	iremer	nt unde	er Section 6	5.2.4.B requires application notice under Section
859	7.5.2	2.D.]			
860					* * *
861		Sec.	8. DIV	ISION 59-6	3 is amended as follows:
862	Divi	sion 6	.3. Ope	en Space and	Recreation
863					* * *
864	Section 6.3.4. Rural Open Space				
865	A.	Gen	eral R	equirements	
866					* * *
867		4.	Uses	in Rural Op	en Space
868			a.	In the RC ze	one, the following uses allowed under Article 59-3
869				are prohibit	ed in any rural open space area:
870					* * *
871				[xiii. Grou	p Day Care (9 - 12 Persons);]
872				[xiv] <u>xiii</u> .	Day Care Center (13 - 30 Persons);
873				$[xv]\underline{xiv}$.	Day Care Center (Over 30 Persons);
874				[xvi] <u>xv</u> .	Private Club, Service Organization;
875				[xvii] <u>xvi</u> .	Public Use (Except Utilities);
876				[xviii] <u>xvii</u> .	Religious Assembly;
877				[xix] <u>xviii</u> .	Animal Boarding and Care;
878				$[xx]\underline{xix}$.	Veterinary Office/Hospital;
879				[xxi] <u>xx</u> .	Media Broadcast Tower;
880				[xxii] <u>xxi</u> .	Country Inn;

881		[xxiii]xxii. Cemetery;
882		[xxiv]xxiii. Landscape Contractor;
883		[xxv]xxiv. Shooting Range (Outdoor);
884		[xxvi]xxv. Rural Antique Shop; and
885		[xxvii]xxvi. Mining, Excavation.
886	b.	In the RNC zone, the following uses allowed under Article 59-3
887		are prohibited in any rural open space area:
888		* * *
889		[xv. Group Day Care (9 - 12 Persons);]
890		[xvi]xv. Day Care Center (13 - 30 Persons);
891		[xvii]xvi. Day Care Center (Over 30 Persons);
892		[xviii]xvii. Educational Institution (Private);
893		[xix]xviii. Playground, Outdoor Area (Private);
894		[xx]xix. Private Club, Service Organization;
895		[xxi]xx. Public Use (Except Utilities);
896		[xxii]xxi. Religious Assembly;
897		[xxiii]xxii. Swimming Pool (Community);
898		[xxiv]xxiii. Animal Boarding and Care;
899		[xxv]xxiv. Veterinary Office/Hospital;
900		[xxvi]xxv. Cable Communications System;
901		[xxvii]xxvi. Telecommunications Tower;
902		[xxviii]xxvii. Cemetery;
903		[xxix]xxviii. Landscape Contractor;
904		[xxx]xxix. Rural Antique Shop;
905		[xxxi]xxx. Rural Country Market; and
906		[xxxii]xxxi. Public Utility Structure.
907		* * *

908		Sec. 9. DIVISION 59-6.8 is amended as follows:
909	Divis	sion 6.8. Alternative Compliance
910	Secti	ion 6.8.1. Alternative Method of Compliance
911	<u>A.</u>	The applicable deciding body may approve an alternative method of
912		compliance with any requirement of Division 6.1 and Division 6.3 through
913		Division 6.6 if it determines that there is a unique site, a use characteristic,
914		or a development constraint, such as grade, visibility, an existing building or
915		structure, an easement, or a utility line. The applicable deciding body must
916		also determine that the unique site, use characteristic, or development
917		constraint precludes safe or efficient development under the requirements of
918		the applicable Division, and the alternative design will:
919		[A]1. satisfy the intent of the applicable Division;
920		[B]2. modify the applicable functional results or performance standards the
921		minimal amount necessary to accommodate the constraints;
922		[C]3. provide necessary mitigation alleviating any adverse impacts; and
923		[D]4. be in the public interest.
924	<u>B.</u>	Landscaping plans that provide more than the minimum requirements in
925		Division 6.5 may be approved by the applicable deciding body without
926		regard to this section.
927		* * *
928		Sec. 10. DIVISION 59-7.3 is amended as follows:
929	Divi	sion 7.3. Regulatory Approvals
930	Secti	ion 7.3.1. Conditional Use
931		* * *
932	D.	Review and Recommendation
933		1. Planning Director Review

934		a.	The Planning Director may provide a report and
935			recommendation for review by the Planning Board at a public
936			meeting or issue a report and recommendation directly to the
937			Hearing Examiner. The Planning Director must provide a report
938			and recommendation on a telecommunication tower application
939			directly to the Hearing Examiner.
940		b.	If the Planning Director provides a report and recommendation
941			to the Planning Board, the Planning Director must publish the
942			report and recommendation a minimum of 10 days before the
943			Planning Board public meeting.
944		c.	If the Planning Director provides a report and recommendation
945			to the Hearing Examiner, the Planning Director must publish
946			the report and recommendation a minimum of 10 days before
947			the Hearing Examiner's public hearing.
948	2.	Plan	ning Board Review
949		a.	The Planning Board may consider the Planning Director's
950			report and recommendation as a consent item on its agenda or
951			hold a public meeting to consider the recommendation.
952		b.	The Planning Board must provide a recommendation on the
953			application to the Hearing Examiner a minimum of 7 days
954			before the Hearing Examiner's public hearing.
955	3.	Ame	endment of an Application
956		a.	An applicant may amend the application before the hearing if
957			the Hearing Examiner approves a motion to amend after giving
958			10 days' notice to all parties entitled to original notice of filing.
959			If an amendment would materially alter an applicant's proposal
960			or evidence, the Hearing Examiner may postpone the hearing to

961		a date that permits all interested parties adequate time to review
962		the amendment.
963	b.	The applicant must forward a copy of any proposed amendment
964		to the Planning Board. The Hearing Examiner must keep the
965		record open for no more than 30 days to provide an opportunity
966		for the Planning Board or its staff to comment. Within that
967		time, the Planning Board or its staff must comment on the
968		amendment or state that no additional review and comment are
969		necessary.
970	4. <u>Dism</u>	nissal or Withdrawal of an Application
971	<u>a.</u>	The Hearing Examiner may dismiss an application if the
972		application has been pending for more than one year and the
973		applicant has not actively pursued the application.
974		i. The Hearing Examiner must notify the applicant of the
975		contemplated dismissal at the applicant's last known
976		address at least 60 days before dismissing the case.
977		ii. The applicant may stay the dismissal by filing a motion
978		before the case is dismissed.
979		iii. The Hearing Examiner may grant the motion for good
980		<u>cause</u> <u>shown.</u>
981	<u>b.</u>	The Hearing Examiner or the Hearing Examiner's designee
982		must send a notice to all parties entitled to notice of the hearing
983		when [an applicant withdraws] an application for a conditional
984		use is withdrawn.
985		* * *
986	Sec. 11. DI	VISION 59-7.6 is amended as follows:
987	Division 7.6. Spe	cial Provisions

988			* * *
989	Sect	ion 7.0	6.5. Fees
990			* * *
991	B.	Wai	ving or Refunding of Local Map Amendment Fees
992		1.	The District Council may waive or refund any Local Map Amendment
993			required filing fee, in whole or in part, if:
994			a. the application has not been advertised for public hearing;
995			b. the application has been advertised for public hearing but the
996			applicant files a request to withdraw it within 90 days after a
997			master plan, Sectional Map Amendment, or Zoning Text
998			Amendment that materially affects the property is approved, or
999			condemnation proceedings or public acquisition of the subject
1000			property has been initiated; or
1001			c. the applicant shows that undue hardship will result if the refund
1002			is not approved.
1003		2.	The Hearing Examiner may refund a Local Map Amendment filing
1004			fee of less than \$25,000, if any condition of Section 7.6.5.B.1 is
1005			satisfied.
1006	<u>C.</u>	<u>Wai</u>	ving or Refunding of Conditional Use Fees
1007	The	<u>Hearii</u>	ng Examiner may waive or refund a filing fee for a conditional use, in
1008	who	<u>le or ir</u>	n part, if:
1009		<u>1.</u>	the application has not been advertised for public hearing;
1010		<u>2.</u>	the application has been advertised for public hearing but the
1011			applicant files a request to withdraw it within 90 days after a master
1012			plan, map amendment, or Zoning Text Amendment that materially
1013			affects the property is approved;

1014	<u>3.</u>	condemnation proceedings or public acquisition of the subject			
1015		property has been initiated;			
1016	<u>4.</u>	if an action of the County Executive, County Council, or an			
1017		administrative board or agency resolves or moots the issues pending			
1018		in the case, whether or not a public hearing has been held; or			
1019	<u>5.</u>	the applicant shows that undue hardship will result if a refund is not			
1020		approved.			
1021	[C] <u>D</u> . Waiv	ving or Refunding of Variance Fees			
1022	If a variance is needed because of an error by a government agency in its approval				
1023	of a site plan, the Board of Appeals may waive or refund all or part of the filing				
1024	fee.				
1025		* * *			
1026	Sec.	12. Effective date. This ordinance becomes effective 20 days after the			
1027	date of Dist	rict Council adoption.			

Ordinance No.:					
Subdivision Reg	Subdivision Regulation Amendment No.: 23-02				
Concerning: Pre	Concerning: Preliminary Plan – Approval				
Procedures					
Revised:	12/04/2023	Draft No.: _1			
Introduced:	December 12	, 2023			
Public Hearing:					
Adopted:		-			
Effective:					

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND SITTING AS THE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THAT PORTION OF THE MARYLAND-WASHINGTON REGIONAL DISTRICT WITHIN MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Lead Sponsor: Council President Friedson

AN AMENDMENT to:

- (1) allow the Director to approve a minor change to a preliminary plan application when associated with a conditional use;
- (2) and generally amend the subdivision amendment provisions.

By amending:

Montgomery County Code

Chapter 50. "Subdivision of Land" Division 50.4. "Preliminary Plans" Section 50.4.2. "Approval Procedures"

EXPLANATION: Boldface indicates a Heading or a defined term.

<u>Underlining</u> indicates text that is added to existing law by the original text amendment.

[Single boldface brackets] indicate text that is deleted from existing law by original text amendment.

<u>Double underlining</u> indicates text that is added to the text amendment by amendment.

[[Double boldface brackets]] indicate text that is deleted from the text amendment by amendment.

* * * indicates existing law unaffected by the text amendment.

ORDINANCE

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, sitting as the District Council for that portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District in Montgomery County, Maryland, approves the following ordinance:

Sec. 1. Chapter 50 is amended as follows:

2 * * *

Division 50.4. Preliminary Plans

4 * * *

Section 50.4.2. Approval Procedures

* * *

E. Plan Certification.

- 1. Every preliminary plan approved by the Board must be certified by the Director to confirm that the plan reflects the Board's approval. Any modification of the plan conditioned by the Board's approval must be included in the plan before receiving the approval stamp. The approved plan must be filed in the records of the Board.
- 2. After conditional use approval and prior to certification of a preliminary plan, the Director may approve a minor change to a preliminary plan that was approved contingent on the approval of a conditional use application, if the minor change does not modify a condition of the preliminary plan. The Director may approve these minor changes without a public hearing if no objection to the application is received within 15 days after the conditional use is approved. If an objection is received within 15 days and the Director considers the objection relevant, a public hearing and action by the Board is required. The Director may also require the change be acted on by the Board when no objection is received.

Montgomery Planning

CLIMATE ASSESSMENT FOR ZTA 23-11, REGULATORY APPROVALS – CONDITIONAL USE

PURPOSE OF CLIMATE ASSESSMENTS

The purpose of the climate assessments is to evaluate the anticipated impact of master plans and zoning text amendments (ZTAs) on the County's contribution to addressing climate change. These assessments will provide the County Council with a better understanding of the potential climate impacts and implications of proposed master plans and ZTAs at the county level. The scope of the climate assessments is limited to the County's contribution to addressing climate change, specifically upon the County's contribution to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and how actions proposed by master plans and ZTAs could improve the County's adaptive capacity to climate change and increase community resilience.

While co-benefits such as health and cost savings may be discussed, the focus is on how proposed master plans and ZTAs may impact GHG emissions and community resilience.

SUMMARY

ZTA 23-11, Regulatory Approvals – Conditional Use, will streamline the Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearing's (OZAH) processes by:

- Allowing limited use approval in certain zones for the following uses: Equestrian Facility,
 Home Health Practitioner, Home Occupation (Major Impact), Retail/Service Establishment,
 Rural Country Market, and Automobile Storage Lot
- Increasing Family Day Care from 8 to 12 persons and eliminating Group Day Care (9-12Persons)
- c. Consolidating Home Health Practitioner (Low Impact) and Home Health Practitioner (Major Impact)
- d. Consolidating Retail/Service Establishment (85,001 SF and Over) and Retail/Service Establishment (120,001 SF and Over)
- e. Not requiring additional notice for waiver of a parking requirement
- f. Not requiring landscaping plans that provide more than the minimum requirements to go through the alternative method of compliance
- g. Allowing the Hearing Examiner to dismiss inactive applications and
- h. Allowing the Hearing Examiner to waive or refund conditional use fees.

It is anticipated that ZTA 23-11 will result in an overall minor indeterminate climate impact resulting from an aggregate of minor local negative and positive climate-related impacts toward the County's goals of addressing greenhouse gas emissions and ensuring resilience, and a small positive impact on the adaptive capacity of our communities.

The number and site locations of future approvals issued under this ZTA are unknown, therefore the ZTA would likely have indeterminate small positive or negative impacts on some greenhouse gas emissions-related variables in the transportation sector, and small positive impacts on several community adaptive capacity-related variables. In view of the small-scale nature of these uses, which for the most part would take advantage of existing structures, these potential impacts would likely be minor on both a local and countywide scale.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE OF ZTA 23-11

The purpose of ZTA 23-11 is to help streamline the conditional use review process. As noted in the summary above, there are a number of changes to code including consolidating similar uses, establishing new limited use standards and process for certain uses, and providing the Hearing Examiner with new processes for dismissing applications and waiving fees under certain circumstances. These modifications are intended to reduce the number of conditional use applications, and to simplify the process for many smaller businesses by eliminating unnecessary reviews.

VARIABLES THAT COULD AFFECT THE ASSESSMENT

CLIMATE-RELATED VARIABLES

Greenhouse Gas-related Variables:

<u>Transportation-related:</u> Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT); Number of Trips; Non-vehicle Modes of Transportation; and Public Transportation Use

Resilience-related Variables:

Exposure-Related: Activity in Urban Heat Islands

Adaptive Capacity-Related Variables:

Change in Availability or Distribution of Economic and Financial Resources; Change to Community Connectivity; and Change in Distribution of Resources and Support

OTHER VARIABLES

Other variables include the number, site locations, and transportation options associated with future approvals issued pursuant to the ZTA.

ANTICPATED IMPACTS

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS, CARBON SEQUESTRATION, AND DRAWDOWN

The proposed limited use approvals (see a. in the Summary above) and the other proposed process streamlining changes (b. – d.) share similar features in that they primarily serve to simplify OZAH's existing review and approval processes. The ZTA does not significantly redefine uses or create uses that do not currently exist. To the degree that applicants take advantage of a more streamlined process created by this ZTA there could be minor increases in approvals by allowing the limited uses and through the other streamlining provisions. This in turn could cause minor indeterminate increases or decreases in the transportation-related greenhouse gas variables indicated above, depending on the number and location of approvals under the ZTA and any associated changes in use and modes of transportation. These variables include vehicle miles traveled, number of trips, nonvehicle modes of transportation, and public transportation use. In view of the small-scale nature of these uses, which for the most part would take advantage of existing structures, these potential impacts would likely be minor on both a local and countywide scale.

Proposed non-land use process-related changes (e. – h.) listed in the Summary above are procedural changes and are not expected to have climate change impacts per ZTA climate assessment criteria.

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE AND ADAPTIVE CAPACITY

As with the greenhouse gas emission discussion above, the proposed limited use approvals (see a. in the Summary above) and the other proposed process streamlining changes (b. – d.) share similar features in that they primarily serve to simplify OZAH's existing review and approval processes. The ZTA does not significantly redefine uses or create uses that do not currently exist. To the degree that applicants take advantage of a more streamlined process created by this ZTA there could be minor increases in approvals by allowing the limited uses and through the other streamlining provisions. This in turn could cause minor indeterminate increases or decreases in the exposure-related variable: activity in urban heat islands. In view of the small-scale nature of these uses, which for the most part would take advantage of existing structures, these potential impacts would likely be minor on both a local and countywide scale.

To the degree that applicants take advantage of a more streamlined process created by this ZTA, the amendment is anticipated to have a minor indeterminate positive impact on several adaptive capacity-related variables including change in availability or distribution of economic and financial resources, change to community connectivity, and change in distribution of resources and support. This is due to potential enhancements in household and business incomes, employment, income equality, business size and diversity, social connections, sense of place and belonging, and availability of resources and support. In view of the small-scale nature of these uses, which for the most part would take advantage of existing structures, these potential impacts would likely be minor on both a local and countywide scale.

Proposed non-land use process-related changes (e. – h.) listed in the Summary above are procedural changes and are not expected to have community resilience and adaptive capacity impacts per ZTA climate assessment criteria.

RELATIONSHIP TO GHG REDUCTION AND SEQUESTRATION ACTIONS CONTAINED IN THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY CLIMATE ACTION PLAN (CAP)

ZTA 23-11 does not involve any GHG or sequestration activities that relate to the GHG reduction and sequestration actions from the County's Climate Action Plan.

RECOMMENDED AMENDMENTS

Planning staff does not have any recommended climate-related amendments to ZTA 23-11 because the ZTA would likely result in an overall indeterminate aggregate of minor positive and negative local impacts on greenhouse gas emissions and resilience. Moreover, other than the anticipated minor positive impacts on community adaptive capacity as discussed above, the ZTA does not offer obvious additional opportunities for significantly enhancing positive climate change impacts beyond the potential benefits associated with the proposed use as discussed in this assessment.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION, ASSUMPTIONS, AND METHODOLOGIES USED

The climate assessment for ZTA 23-11 was prepared using the methodology (tables 1, 2, and 8, in particular) for ZTAs contained within the <u>Climate Assessment Recommendations for Master Plans and Zoning Text Amendments in Montgomery County, December 1, 2022.</u>